
Board Meeting Agenda 

July 25, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. 

In Person Irrigon City Hall 

500 NE Main Ave, Irrigon, OR 97844 

Zoom https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88401894646?pwd=cElEeEo4bTRkRXk5amdMNTZqVmNqUT09 

Meeting ID: 884 0189 4646 

Passcode: 717627 

1. Call to Order

2. Public Comments
Maximum of 3 minutes per person/topic.  Multiple items on the same topic need to be combined through one speaker. 
A maximum of 30 minutes may be allotted for public comment.

3. Approval of Meeting Minutes

A. July 8, 2022 – Special Session

B. June 27, 2022 – Regular Session

4. CEO Report & Executive Team Dashboard – Emily Roberts

5. New Business

A. Promise of Excellence Updates

B. AFSCME Union Agreement

C. Community Benefit Request

D. Skyline Medical Staff Contract

E. Jogan Health Contract

F. Medical Staff Appointments

G. Surplus Items

H. Ventilator Quote

6. Old Business

7. Executive Session

A. ORS 192.660(2)(f) to consider information or records that are exempt from public inspection 
pertaining to ongoing or anticipated litigation exempt from disclosure under ORS 192.345(1).

B. ORS 192.660(2)(f) to consider information or records that are exempt from public inspection 
pertaining to trade secrets exempt from disclosure under ORS 192.345(2).

8. Adjourn 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88401894646?pwd=cElEeEo4bTRkRXk5amdMNTZqVmNqUT09


 

  

 1 

 

  
 

Meeting Information Committee Members 

Meeting 
Date/Time: 

July 8, 2022 
@ 12 p.m. 

Board 
Members: 

Present by Zoom: John Murray, Carri Grieb, Aaron Palmquist, Diane Kilkenny, Marie Shimer 

Location Zoom Only Guests: Staff Members by Zoom:  Emily Roberts, Nicole Mahoney, Patti Allstott, Michael Lieuallen, Sam Van Laer 

Press by Zoom:  David Sykes  

Video Dial In: Zoom Leader: Marie Shimer, Board Chair Recorder: Emily Roberts 

 
Vision: 
Be the first choice for quality, compassionate care and lead the way 
in promoting wellness and improving health in Morrow County 
 

Mission: 
Working together to provide excellence in 
healthcare 
 

Values: 
Integrity, Compassion, Quality, Respect, Teamwork, 
Financial Responsibility

Agenda Item Notes/Minutes 

1. Call to Order  Chair Marie Shimer called the meeting to order at 12:01 p.m. 

2. New Business  

A. New Appointment to 
EMS Advisory 
Committee 

 Two applications were presented to the Board for the EMS Advisory Committee position required to be filled by a MCHD EMT in 
Boardman. 

MOTION:  Aaron Palmquist moved to appoint Richard Hernandez to the EMS Advisory Committee.  John Murray seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed unanimously by all board members. 

B. Public Relations 
Contract 

 A public relations contract with GARD was presented to the Board. 

MOTION:  Aaron Palmquist moved to approve the contract with GARD as presented.  Carri Grieb seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed unanimously by all board members. 

3. Executive Session  Marie Shimer announced an Executive Session under ORS 192.660(2)(f) to consider information or records that are exempt from 
public inspection. 

4. Open Session  Executive Session adjourned at 12:33 p.m. and returned to Open Session. 

MOTION:  Aaron Palmquist moved to authorize the CEO to engage in separation negotiations with the AFSCME Union.  John 
Murray seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously by all board members. 

5. Adjourn With no further business to come before the board, session adjourned at 12:36 p.m. 

Minutes taken and submitted by Emily Roberts.     Approved _______. 

 

Board of Directors 

Special Session Meeting Minutes 



 

  

 1 

 

  
 

Meeting Information Committee Members 

Meeting 
Date/Time: 

June 28th, 2022 
@ 6:30 p.m. 

Board 
Members: 

Present: John Murray, Carri Grieb (Zoom), Aaron Palmquist, Diane Kilkenny, Marie Shimer 

Location Pioneer Memorial Clinic 
130 Thompson Ave 
Heppner, OR  97836 

Guests: Staff Members:  Emily Roberts, Nicole Mahoney, Patti Allstott, Jamie Houck, Sam Van Laer, Richard Hernandez, 

Natalia Wight (Zoom)  

Guests:  Doris Brosnan, Unknown Zoom User 

Press:  David Sykes  

Video Dial In: Zoom Leader: John Murray, Board Chair Recorder: Jodi Ferguson 

 
Vision: 
Be the first choice for quality, compassionate care and lead the way 
in promoting wellness and improving health in Morrow County 
 

Mission: 
Working together to provide excellence in 
healthcare 
 

Values: 
Integrity, Compassion, Quality, Respect, Teamwork, 
Financial Responsibility

 

Agenda Item Notes/Minutes 

1. Call to Order  Chairman John Murray called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

2. Public Comments  No public comments.  

3. Approval of Minutes MOTION: Aaron Palmquist moved to approve the minutes for the May 5, 2022 special session and the May 23, 2022 regular 
session as presented.  Diane Kilkenny seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously by all board members present. 

4. Promise of Excellence 
Review 

 John Murray reviewed some of the topics of the District’s Promise of Excellence. 

5. CEO Report & Executive 
Team Dashboard 

 The CEO report and executive team dashboard were presented by Emily Roberts (see board packet).  

6. CFO Financial Report  Financials for May 2022 were presented by Nicole Mahoney.  The district had a $215,919 gain for the month. 

MOTION:  Aaron Palmquist moved to approve the modifications to the proposed budget for FY 2022-2023 as presented.  
Marie Shimer seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously by all board members present. 

7. New Business  

A. Resolution #141-0622  Modifications to proposed budget for FY 2022-2023 were presented by Nicole Mahoney. 

Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes 



 

  

 2 

 

MOTION:  Aaron Palmquist moved to approve modifications to the budget for FY2022-2023 as presented.  Marie Shimer 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously by all board members present. 

 Resolution 141-0622 – In the matter of adopting the budget, making appropriations, imposing and categorizing taxes was presented.   

MOTION:  Aaron Palmquist moved to approve resolution #141-0622 as presented for adoption of the FY 2022-2023 budget for 
$23,536,653 and making appropriations, imposing and categorizing taxes.  Carri Grieb seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed unanimously by all board members present. 

B. Resolution #140-0622  Resolution 140-0622 – Authorization to Invest Funds was presented. 

MOTION:  Aaron Palmquist moved to approve Resolution 140-0622 as presented.  Marie Shimer seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed unanimously by all board members present. 

C. PA Wage Scale 
Proposal 

 Emily presented the District’s current Physician Assistant and Nurse Practitioner wage scales with a recommendation to move the 
PAs to the same scale as the NPs. 

MOTION:  Aaron Palmquist moved to approve the same scale for PAs and NPs as presented.  Marie Shimer seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed with 4 in favor (Aaron Palmquist, John Murray, Carri Grieb, Marie Shimer) and 1 opposed (Diane 
Kilkenny). 

D. Dr. Metzler Contract 
Addendum 

 Emily presented a contract addendum for Dr. Metzler to serve as the District’s Trauma Medical Director as of 07/01/2022. 

MOTION:  Aaron Palmquist moved to approve the addendum to Dr. Metzler’s contract as presented.  Diane Kilkenny seconded.  
The motion passed unanimously by all board members present. 

E. Physician Assistant 
Contract 

 Emily presented a Physician Assistant Contract for Justin Cameron, PA-C to provide services at Irrigon Medical Clinic as of 
08/15/2022.  

MOTION:  Aaron Palmquist moved to approve the contract for Justin Cameron, PA-C as presented.  Marie Shimer seconded.  
The motion passed unanimously by all board members present. 

F. Laboratory Consulting 
Contract 
 

 Emily presented a revised contract with InCyte Pathology. 

MOTION:  Marie Shimer moved to approve the contract with InCyte Pathology as presented.  Diane Kilkenny seconded.  The 
motion passed unanimously by all board members present. 

G.  Privileges for 
Radiologists with 
Radiology Specialist of 
Northwest 

 Emily presented a packet containing 19 new appointments to medical staff for Radiology Specialist of Northwest, which were 
approved by the District’s medical staff. 

MOTION:  Aaron Palmquist moved to approve all 19 appointments to medical staff as presented.  Marie Shimer seconded.  The 
motion passed unanimously by all board members present. 

H. Annex Remodel Quote  Emily presented a quote for the remodel of the annex building, which will allow the administration team to move to the annex, freeing 
up space for additional clinical services in the hospital. 

MOTION:  Aaron Palmquist moved to approve the remodel of the annex building up to $16,000.   Carri Grieb seconded.  The 
motion passed unanimously by all board members present. 



 

  

 3 

 

I. Election of Board 
Officers 

 John Murray requested an election of board officers.  

 Carri Grieb nominated Marie Shimer as Chair.  No other nominations were put forth. 

VOTE:  All board members voted unanimously for Marie Shimer as Chair. 

 Carri Grieb nominated Diane Kilkenny as Vice Chair.  No other nominations were put forth. 

VOTE:  All board members voted unanimously for Diane Kilkenny as Vice Chair. 

New appointments will be effective 07/01/2022. 

8. Old Business  None. 

9. Executive Session  John Murray announced Executive Sessions under ORS 192.660(2)(c) to consider matters pertaining to the function of the medical 
staff of a public hospital; ORS 192.660(2)(f) to consider information or records that are exempt from public inspection; and ORS 
192.660(2)(i) to review and evaluate the employment-related performance of a public employee who does not request open hearing. 

 With no further business to come before the board, the regular session adjourned at 7:37 p.m.  Executive session was called to 
order at 7:42 p.m. and adjourned at 9:06 p.m. 

 
10. Adjourn 

With no further business to come before the board, regular session adjourned at 7:37 p.m. 

Minutes taken and submitted by Jodi Ferguson.     Approved _______. 

 



Days Cash on Hand 64* Goal ≥ 90

Days in AR 49* Goal ≤ 60

*Updated June 2022.

10%* MEASURE PMC IMC ICC

13.9% Third Next Available 
(Current Month)

19 31 4

15 Total Visits 
(Previous Month)

158 315 99

Qtr 2 2022 Qtr 1 2022 Qtr 4 2021 Qtr 2 2022 Qtr 1 2022 Qtr 4 2021

Pioneer Memorial Clinic 86% 65% 80% Pioneer Memorial Clinic 86% 91% 88%
N = 7 N = 23 N = 25 N = 7 N = 23 N = 24

Irrigon Medical Clinic 75% 67% 73% Irrigon Medical Clinic 100% 83% 87%
N = 8 N = 18 N = 15 N = 7 N = 18 N = 15

Ione Community Clinic 71% 100% 100% Ione Community Clinic 100% 100% 100%
N = 7 N = 5 N = 12 N = 7 N = 6 N = 13

NRC Average 83% NRC Average 90%

"Third Next Available" is an industry standard measurement of primary care access.  It is 
defined as the average length of time in days between the day a patient makes a request 
for an appointment with a provider and the third available appointment for a new patient 
physical, routine exam, or return visit exam.  Values shown are clinic averages.

Turnover Rate 
(Rolling 3 Months - February to April 2022)

Number of Open Positions

Using any number from 0 to 10, where 0 is the worst provider possible 
and 10 is the best provider possible, what number would you use to rate 
this provider? Would you recommend this provider's office to your family and friends?

Vacancy Rate

July 2022

FINANCIAL

HUMAN RESOURCES RURAL HEALTH CLINICS

CAHPS (PATIENT SATISFACTION SCORES)

The average hospital turnover rate for 2020 was 19.5% (Statista).
The annual total separations rate for health care and social assistance for 2021 was 
39.4% (Bureau of Labor Statistics).
*Turnover rate includes six temporary positions, which ended as planned.

Page 1 of 3



Qtr 2 2022 Qtr 1 2022 Qtr 4 2021 Qtr 2 2022 Qtr 1 2022 Qtr 4 2021

ER Adult 70% 88% 81% ER Adult 80% 80% 78%
N = 10 N = 16 N = 37 N = 10 N = 15 N = 37

NRC Average 64% NRC Average 66%
Bed Size 6 - 24 Average 77% Bed Size 6 - 24 Average 78%

Qtr 2 2022 Qtr 1 2022 Qtr 4 2021 Qtr 2 2022 Qtr 1 2022 Qtr 4 2021

ER Pediatric 33% 50% No Data ER Pediatric 0% 50% No Data
N = 3 N = 2 N = 0 N = 3 N = 2 N = 0

NRC Average 65% NRC Average 69%

Qtr 2 2022 Qtr 1 2022 Qtr 4 2021 Qtr 2 2022 Qtr 1 2022 Qtr 4 2021

Inpatient 100% 100% 40% Inpatient 100% 75% 60%
N = 2 N = 3 N = 5 N = 2 N = 4 N = 5

NRC Average 71% NRC Average 72%
Bed Size 6 - 24 Average 81% Bed Size 6 - 24 Average 80%

Qtr 2 2022 Qtr 1 2022 Qtr 4 2021 Qtr 2 2022 Qtr 1 2022 Qtr 4 2021

Hospital 100% No Data No Data Hospital 100% No Data No Data
N = 1 N = 0 N = 0 N = 1 N = 0 N = 0

NRC Average 71% NRC Average 72%
Bed Size 6 - 24 Average 81% Bed Size 6 - 24 Average 80%

Using any number from 0 to 10, where 0 is the worst hospital possible 
and 10 is the best hospital possible, what number would you use to rate 
this hospital during your stay? Would you recommend this hospital to your friends and family?

Using any number from 0 to 10, where 0 is the worst facility possible 
and 10 is the best facility possible, what number would you use to rate 
this emergency department?

Would you recommend this emergency department to your friends and 
family?

Using any number from 0 to 10, where 0 is the worst facility possible 
and 10 is the best facility possible, what number would you use to rate 
this emergency department?

Would you recommend this emergency department to your friends and 
family?

Using any number from 0 to 10, where 0 is the worst hospital possible 
and 10 is the best hospital possible, what number would you use to rate 
this hospital during your stay? Would you recommend this hospital to your friends and family?

Page 2 of 3



Score is equal to or greater than the NRC Average
Score is less than the NRC Average, but may not be significantly

Score is significantly less than the NRC Average

Page 3 of 3



Dispatch to 
En Route

Response 
Time

Number of 
Runs

Dispatch to 
En Route

Response 
Time

Number of 
Runs

Dispatch to 
En Route

Response 
Time

Number of 
Runs

Dispatch to 
En Route

Response 
Time

Number of 
Runs

Dispatch to 
En Route

Response 
Time

Number of 
Runs

Dispatch to 
En Route

Response 
Time

Number of 
Runs

Dispatch to 
En Route

Response 
Time

Number of 
Runs

January 1.0 5.1 51.0 0.5 6.5 2.0 8.0 12.0 43.0 N/A N/A 0.0 5.0 12.5 20.0 4.0 8.0 9.0 N/A N/A 0.0
February 1.2 5.0 48.0 5.2 7.0 2.0 5.5 8.9 18.0 N/A N/A 0.0 6.0 15.0 23.0 10.1 15.0 2.0 N/A N/A 0.0

March 1.0 4.7 46.0 0.1 3.1 1.0 5.6 8.5 22.0 8.5 10.0 2.0 7.0 9.9 16.0 2.7 11.2 2.0 7.1 11.3 1.0
April 1.0 3.8 34.0 0.5 3.7 10.0 6.2 9.0 22.0 N/A N/A 0.0 7.0 17.0 16.0 7.0 29.0 2.0 N/A N/A 0.0
May 0.6 4.0 46.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 6.0 8.9 34.0 N/A N/A 0.0 6.0 12.6 18.0 18.6 29.5 6.0 N/A N/A 0.0
June 0.6 3.7 38.0 1.1 2.7 8.0 6.0 2.1 36.0 8.0 13.0 1.0 6.0 4.0 41.0 1.0 5.0 5.0 N/A N/A 0.0
July

August
September

October
November
December

Dispatch to en route means the length of time between when the ambulance is dispatched to when the ambulance leaves the garage.
Response time means the length of time between the notification to the ambulance and the arrival of the ambulance at the incident scene.*
*Note that response times are not adjusted for miles traveled and in some instances (598) include non-emergent transfers.

598 6992022
BOARDMAN IRRIGON HEPPNER IONE

899 898 299 298 599

Boardman 
Incident

MCHD 899 
(Boardman) 

Responds First

MCHD 299 
(Irrigon) 

Responds Second

MCHD 898 
(Boardman) 

Responds Third

MCHD 298 
(Irrigon) 

Responds Fourth

Irrigon 
Incident

MCHD 299 
(Irrigon) 

Responds First

MCHD 899 
(Boardman) 

Responds Second

MCHD 298 
(Irrigon) 

Responds Third

MCHD 898 
(Boardman) 

Responds Fourth

Heppner 
Incident

MCHD 599 
(Heppner) 

Responds First

MCHD 598 
(Heppner) 

Responds Second

MCHD 699 
(Ione) 

Responds Third

Ione 
Incident

MCHD 699 
(Ione)

MCHD 599 
(Heppner) 

Respond Together

MCHD 598 
(Heppner) 

Responds Second



Provider Measure 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 Total

Dr. Lion Patient Hours Available 8 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 8 8 7.5 8 7.5 77

Patients Seen 13 2 1 11 5 3 10 5 7 10 67

No Shows 1 1 0 0 1 0 1 1 0 3 8

Patient Cancellations 0 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 3

Clinic Cancellations 0 4 7 0 2 4 0 0 5 1 23

Pts. Per Available Hour 1.6 0.3 0.1 1.5 0.7 0.4 1.3 0.7 0.9 1.3 0.9

No Show Rate 7% 13% 0% 0% 13% 0% 8% 17% 0% 21% 8%

Patient Cancel Rate 0% 13% 0% 0% 0% 13% 8% 0% 0% 0% 3%

Clinic Cancel Rate 0% 50% 88% 0% 25% 50% 0% 0% 42% 7% 23%

Provider Measure 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 Total

Dr. Sirucek Patient Hours Available 3.75 3.75 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 71.5

Patients Seen 4 5 12 4 8 9 7 12 10 11 82

No Shows 1 1 1 0 2 1 0 1 1 0 8

Patient Cancellations 0 1 1 1 2 2 1 0 0 3 11

Clinic Cancellations 0 1 0 2 0 0 3 0 0 0 6

Pts. Per Available Hour 1.1 1.3 1.5 0.5 1.0 1.1 0.9 1.5 1.3 1.4 1.1

No Show Rate 20% 13% 7% 0% 17% 8% 0% 8% 9% 0% 7%

Patient Cancel Rate 0% 13% 7% 14% 17% 17% 9% 0% 0% 21% 10%

Clinic Cancel Rate 0% 13% 0% 29% 0% 0% 27% 0% 0% 0% 6%

Provider Measure 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 Total

Dr. Seals Patient Hours Available 2 2 2 2.5 8.5

Patients Seen 3 2 3 1 9

No Shows 0 0 0 0 0

Patient Cancellations 0 1 0 0 1

Clinic Cancellations 0 0 0 0 0

Pts. Per Available Hour 1.5 1.0 1.5 0.4 1.1

No Show Rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Patient Cancel Rate 0% 33% 0% 0% 10%

Clinic Cancel Rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

PMC TOTALS Measure 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 Total

Patient Hours Available 8 3.75 9.5 9.5 7.5 3.75 8 8 8 8 8 15.5 16 16 2 10 8 7.5 157

Patients Seen 13 4 5 3 11 5 12 4 8 9 7 17 13 21 3 6 7 10 158

No Shows 1 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 2 1 0 2 1 1 0 1 0 3 16

Patient Cancellations 0 0 1 1 0 1 1 1 2 2 1 0 1 4 0 0 0 0 15

Clinic Cancellations 0 0 4 7 0 1 0 2 0 0 3 2 4 0 0 0 5 1 29

Pts. Per Available Hour 1.6 1.1 0.5 0.3 1.5 1.3 1.5 0.5 1.0 1.1 0.9 1.1 0.8 1.3 1.5 0.6 0.9 1.3 1.0

No Show Rate 7% 20% 9% 0% 0% 13% 7% 0% 17% 8% 0% 10% 5% 4% 0% 14% 0% 21% 7%

Patient Cancel Rate 0% 0% 9% 9% 0% 13% 7% 14% 17% 17% 9% 0% 5% 15% 0% 0% 0% 0% 7%

Clinic Cancel Rate 0% 0% 36% 64% 0% 13% 0% 29% 0% 0% 27% 10% 21% 0% 0% 0% 42% 7% 13%

PIONEER MEMORIAL CLINIC - JUNE 2022



Provider Measure 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 Total
Jamie Reed, CSWA Patient Hours Available 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 4.5 3.5 4.5 6.5 3.5 5.5 3 5.5 6.5 6.5 6 88

Patients Seen 2 1 0 1 2 2 0 2 3 1 1 1 1 0 0 2 19
No Shows 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 4
Patient Cancellations 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5
Clinic Cancellations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Pts. Per Available Hour 0.3 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.0 0.4 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.2
No Show Rate 0% 0% N/A 50% 33% 0% N/A 0% 0% 0% 50% 0% 50% N/A N/A 0% 14%
Patient Cancel Rate 0% 67% N/A 0% 0% 0% N/A 0% 40% 0% 0% 0% 0% N/A N/A 33% 18%
Clinic Cancel Rate 0% 0% N/A 0% 0% 0% N/A 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% N/A N/A 0% 0%

Provider Measure 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 Total
Jon Watson, PA Patient Hours Available 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8 8 8.5 152

Patients Seen 14 13 9 15 14 11 10 12 11 12 15 14 12 13 15 11 9 12 222
No Shows 1 3 2 0 2 2 1 4 2 1 1 0 1 1 2 1 1 2 27
Patient Cancellations 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 1 4 0 0 2 3 1 0 2 1 1 31
Clinic Cancellations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Pts. Per Available Hour 1.6 1.5 1.1 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.5 1.8 1.4 1.1 1.4 1.5
No Show Rate 6% 16% 13% 0% 12% 13% 7% 24% 12% 8% 6% 0% 6% 7% 12% 7% 9% 13% 10%
Patient Cancel Rate 12% 16% 27% 6% 6% 13% 21% 6% 24% 0% 0% 13% 19% 7% 0% 14% 9% 7% 11%
Clinic Cancel Rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Provider Measure 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 Total
Vicki Kent, FNP Patient Hours Available 8.5 8.5 0 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 68

Patients Seen 9 10 0 8 10 10 9 9 9 74
No Shows 1 0 0 1 1 2 2 3 0 10
Patient Cancellations 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 3
Clinic Cancellations 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Pts. Per Available Hour 1.1 1.2 N/A 0.9 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1
No Show Rate 9% 0% N/A 11% 9% 15% 17% 25% 0% 11%
Patient Cancel Rate 9% 0% N/A 0% 0% 8% 8% 0% 0% 3%
Clinic Cancel Rate 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 2%

IMC TOTALS Measure 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 Total
Patient Hours Available 15 23.5 8.5 15 15 15 13 0 12 21.5 8.5 17 8.5 8.5 15 12 22.5 11.5 14 14.5 14.5 23 308
Patients Seen 16 23 10 9 16 16 13 0 10 22 11 22 10 15 17 13 23 10 16 11 9 23 315
No Shows 1 4 0 2 1 3 2 0 1 5 2 2 2 1 0 1 4 3 3 1 1 2 41
Patient Cancellations 2 6 0 4 1 1 2 0 3 1 4 0 1 0 4 3 2 0 0 2 1 2 39
Clinic Cancellations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Pts. Per Available Hour 1.1 1.0 1.2 0.6 1.1 1.1 1.0 ##### 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.8 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.1 0.8 0.6 1.0 1.0
No Show Rate 5% 12% 0% 13% 6% 15% 12% 0% 7% 18% 12% 8% 15% 6% 0% 6% 14% 23% 16% 7% 9% 7% 10%
Patient Cancel Rate 11% 18% 0% 27% 6% 5% 12% 0% 21% 4% 24% 0% 8% 0% 19% 18% 7% 0% 0% 14% 9% 7% 10%
Clinic Cancel Rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 1%

IRRIGON MEDICAL CLINIC - JUNE 2022



Provider Measure 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 Total
Eileen McElligott Patient Hours Available 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 72

Patients Seen 10 14 10 13 10 10 10 11 11 99
No Shows 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 2
Patient Cancellations 1 1 3 0 1 0 1 0 0 7
Clinic Cancellations 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Pts. Per Available Hour 1.3 1.8 1.3 1.6 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4
No Show Rate 0% 0% 0% 7% 0% 0% 0% 0% 8% 2%
Patient Cancel Rate 8% 7% 23% 0% 9% 0% 9% 0% 0% 6%
Clinic Cancel Rate 8% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 1%

IONE COMMUNITY CLINIC - JUNE 2022



Morrow County Health District Promise of Excellence 

In 2014, Morrow County Health District adopted the Promise of Excellence, a document outlining 

the behaviors and attitudes that all District employees agreed uphold to support the District’s True 

North Statement, “Welcoming our patients and providing exceptional care.” 

 

In 2022, as part of the District’s Service Excellence Initiative, the Promise of Excellence was updated 

and clarified to better reflect efforts Districtwide to welcome patients and provide exceptional care. 

 

 

 



      
 

 

AGREEMENT 

 
Between 

 
MORROW COUNTY HEALTH 

DISTRICT 

 
& 

 
MORROW COUNTY HEALTH 

DISTRICT LOCAL UNION 

2479-1 

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF 

STATE, COUNTY & MUNICIPAL 

EMPLOYEES 

AFSCME, AFL-CIO 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2024



 TABLE OF CONTENTS  

  
Page 

PREAMBLE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 

ARTICLE 2 UNION ACCOMMODATION . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 

ARTICLE 3 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 

ARTICLE 4 STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 

ARTICLE 5 NON-DISCRIMINATION . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 

ARTICLE 6 HOURS AND OVERTIME . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 

ARTICLE 7 VACATION TIME . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 

ARTICLE 9 SICK LEAVE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 

ARTICLE 10 PAID LEAVE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 

ARTICLE 11 LAYOFF AND RECALL . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 

ARTICLE 12 EMPLOYEE RIGHTS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 

ARTICLE 13 SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. ……. 20 

ARTICLE 14 NON-PAID LEAVE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 

ARTICLE 15 SAVINGS CLAUSE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 

ARTICLE 16 ADDITIONAL BENEFITS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 

ARTICLE 17 COMPENSATION. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 

ARTICLE 18 DURATION . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25 

APPENDIX A HOURLY WAGES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
 



3  

PREAMBLE 

 
This Agreement is entered into by the Morrow County Health District, hereinafter referred to as the 
District, and AFSCME Local 2479-1, a local of the American Federation of State, County and 
Municipal Employees Council 75, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the Union, for the purpose 
of prescribing the rates of pay, hours of work, benefits and other terms and conditions of 
employment for all employees in the bargaining unit hereafter described. Except as otherwise 
required by ORS 243, terms and conditions not specifically covered by this Agreement are retained 
among the exclusive rights and prerogatives of the District. 

 
ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION 

 

Section 1. Recognition Agreement: 
 

The District recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all employees 
assigned to any of the classifications listed in Appendix A hereof, excluding part-time employees 
working less than twenty (20) hours per week. 

 
Section 2. Definitions: 

 

A. Regularly Scheduled Part-time: 

 
A part-time employee covered by this Agreement shall be an employee who is employed on a 
regularly scheduled basis, for an average of twenty (20) hours or more per week but less than full- 
time. The four (4) most recent calendar months shall be used to establish the average. 

 
B. Temporary: 

 
Temporary employees are defined as those employees holding jobs of limited duration (not more 
than four months) arising out of special projects, abnormal workloads, emergencies or as 
replacement for a regular employee who is on paid or non-paid leave. Should the circumstance 
requiring the temporary employee continue past four months in a position covered by this 
Agreement, the issue will be discussed with the Department Head, Administration and a 
representative of the Union. 

 
C. Probationary Employee: 

 

Shall mean any employee serving the four-month (4) probation period applicable to all new 
employees. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 12, Section 1, Discipline, such an employee 
may be discharged without the right to appeal such action. 

 
D. Occasional Part-time 

 
Employees who are scheduled to work on an as needed basis of not more than 20 hours per week 
are considered to have Occasional Part-time status. Hours may vary according to unforeseen 



4  

circumstances. Termination may result if the employee is unavailable for work or has not worked in 
a six-month period. This employee classification is not eligible for employer-paid benefits. This 
classification is not covered under this Agreement. 

 
E. Seniority: 

 
For all instances in which employee seniority (or years of service) must be applied in this Agreement, 
an employee’s seniority shall be determined by the following: 

 
1. For service prior to July 1, 1985, all months in which the employee has worked ten (10) days or 
more since his or her most recent date of hire shall be counted. 

 
2. Commencing July 1, 1985, all hours worked in any position that is covered by the bargaining unit 
since the employee’s most recent date of hire shall be counted. Hours shall be converted to months 
on the basis of 173.3-hours-equals-one-month. Vacation time, sick leave, the period of a temporary 
disability that is covered by Workers Compensation, and military and education leave shall be 
counted as time worked for purposes of determining seniority. 

 
Section 3. New Positions: 

 

If the District establishes a new position which it believes is excluded from the bargaining unit under 
ORS 243.650 or reclassifies an existing bargaining unit position so as to exclude it from the 
bargaining unit, it shall notify the Union in writing within thirty (30) days following the action as to 
whether or not it believes the classification to be within the bargaining unit. The Union must notify 
the employer in writing within thirty (30) days from receipt of the notification if it disagrees about 
the inclusion or exclusion of the classification in the bargaining unit or the matter becomes closed. If 
notice of the disagreement is received within the thirty (30) days of above notification, the parties 
shall meet within thirty (30) days of above notification, or later if mutually agreed to, to discuss the 
matter. If agreement is not reached within thirty (30) days, the Union may submit the matter to 
mutually agreed-upon Arbitrator. The District may at its discretion fill the position or leave it vacant 
while the above procedure is being observed. In the event that it is found that any employees are 
inappropriately classed they shall be integrated into the bargaining unit without loss of pay or other 
benefits. 

 

ARTICLE 2 UNION ACCOMMODATION 

Section 1: Fair Share: 
 

A. The District agrees to deduct the uniformly required Union membership dues and other 
authorized fees or assessments once each month from the pay of those employees who have 
authorized such deductions in writing. Except as provided in the following, an amount equal to the 
cost of representation (fair share) as certified in writing by the Union to the District, not, however, to 
exceed the amount of the uniformly required dues will be deducted from the pay of all employees in 
the bargaining unit who have not provided the District with such authorization. 



5  

B. The provisions of Part A hereof shall not apply if an employee objects in writing to the Union 
based on personal or religious reasons. The Union will provide the District with a copy of any such 
letter within ten (10) working days of its receipt. In such instances, the employee shall authorize a 
deduction from his/her pay which is in lieu of and equivalent to the fair share amount. Such payroll 
deduction shall be in addition to any previously established deduction and shall be for the United 
Fund or other mutually satisfactory charitable organization as agreed to between the employee and 
the Union. 

 
C. For the purposes of calculating months to determine the beginning or end of the payroll 
deductions called for in Parts A or B of this section, dues or like amounts shall be deducted for any 
calendar month during which the employee works ten (10) working days or more. 

 
D. The Union will indemnify, defend and hold the District harmless against any claims made and 
against any suit instituted against the District as a result of any District action taken pursuant to the 
provisions of this Article. The Union and the District each agree to reimburse any monies paid or 
not paid in error within thirty (30) days of notification of such error. 

 
E. A list of members/fair share shall be given to the Union monthly, the list is to include name, 
Social Security number and amount of dues/fair share. 

 
Section 2: Break Room and Bulletin Board: 

 

The District agrees to continue to furnish and maintain a suitable bulletin board at all District 
locations to be used by the Union. Such bulletin board shall be the repository of all Union 
information upon District premises, and all items so posted shall bear the name, title and signature 
of the Union official authorizing such posting. The District agrees to furnish and maintain a Rest 
Break Room and an area with lockers (at the hospital) for the use of employees in the bargaining 
unit. 

 
Section 3: Visits by Union Representative: 

 

A Union business representative may visit the District, provided that visits in such capacity shall be 
strictly confined to non-patient care areas of the District, and provided further that there is no 
interference with normal work activities of employees. The District administration shall be notified 
of any such visit at the time of entry to the District facilities. 

 
Section 4: Reports: 

 

Once a month, the employer will provide the following information by electronic report(s); 
 

A. Notify the Union of all new hires in the bargaining unit. Such notification shall include the 
employee’s name, home mailing address, position for which they were hired, home phone 
number and date of birth. 

 

B. Provide the Union notice of non-retiree terminations of employment effective date: resignation, 
layoffs, or termination. 



6  

Section 5: New Employee Orientation: 
 

A Union representative will be allowed up to Thirty (30) minutes during the new employee orientation 
to make a presentation to represented employees. 

 

Section 6: Union Business Leave: 
 

A. Brown Bag Lunches: The Employer will support brown bag lunches by the Union by 
providing space for such lunches, subject to room availability, and by directing supervisors to 
be flexible with employees’ scheduled lunch breaks to allow employee attendance, as work 
needs allow. Employees may attend such lunches during their non-work time. 

 

B. Time Off for Union Activities: Union-designated employees may be allowed time off without 
pay to attend union-sponsored meetings, training sessions, conferences, and conventions. The 
employees’ time off will not interfere with the operating needs of the employer. The employees 
may use vacation leave instead of leave without pay. 

 

C. Temporary Employment with the Union:  Upon request of the Union, the Employer may 
grant leave with pay for temporary employment with the Union, not to exceed a maximum of 
seven (7) days. The Union will give the Employer at least thirty (30) calendar day’s prior notice, 
unless otherwise agreed. The Union will reimburse the Employer for the “fully burdened costs 
of the positions” the Employer incurs as a result of placing the employee on leave with pay 
during the period of absence. The Union will reimburse the Employer each month for the 
previous month, upon receipt of an itemized summary of the costs to be charged to the union. 
For purposes of this provision, “fully burdened costs of the positions” means the cost of 
wages, benefits, workers’ compensation insurance, and other administrative costs not to exceed 
5% of the employee’s total salary. 

 

Section 7: Negotiating Team: 
 

Negotiating times will be scheduled by mutual agreement between the Union and management. Up 
to three bargaining unit members will be released from work without loss of compensation or 
vacation time to serve on the negotiating committee for bargaining. The members of the team must 
be declared 30 days in advance for scheduling purposes or as other otherwise agreed. 

 
ARTICLE 3 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

 

Section 1. General Rights: 
 

The District retains all the customary, usual, and exclusive rights, decision-making, prerogatives, 
functions, and authority connected with or in any way incident to its responsibility to manage the 
affairs of the District or any department or function thereof. The rights of employees in the 
bargaining unit and the Union are limited to those specifically set forth in this Agreement, and the 
Hospital retains all prerogatives, functions, and rights not specifically limited by the terms of this 
Agreement. The District shall have no obligation to bargain with the Union with respect to any 
such subjects or the exercise of its discretion and decision-making with regard thereto, any subjects 



7  

covered by the terms of this Agreement and closed to further bargaining for the term hereof, and 
any subject which was or might have been raised in the course of collective bargaining. 

 
Section 2. Specific Rights: 

 

Without limitation, but by way of illustration, the exclusive prerogatives, functions and rights of the 
District shall include the following: 

 
A. To direct and supervise all operation, functions and policies of the departments in which the 
employees in the bargaining unit are employed; and operations, functions and policies in the 
remainder of the District as they may affect employees in the bargaining unit. 

 
B. To close, liquidate or combine any department, office, branch, operation or facility, service, or 
combination thereof, or to relocate, reorganize, or combine the work of departments, division, 
offices, branches, operations of facilities for budgetary or any other reasons. 

 
C. To determine the need for a reduction or an increase in the work force and the implementation 
of any decision with regard thereto. 

 
D. To establish, review and implement standards for hiring, classification, promotion, quality or 
work, safety, materials, equipment, dress, cleanliness, grooming, personal conduct, uniforms, 
appearance, methods and procedures. 

 
E. To implement new and to review or discard, wholly or in part, old methods, procedures, 
materials, equipment, facilities and standards. 

 
F. To assign and distribute work, to direct overtime work and to lay off personnel or reduce the 
work force in the event patient load requires such action. 

 
G. To contract or sub-contract, including reassignment to non-bargaining unit District personnel, 
provided that with regard to any contracting or subcontracting out of work currently performed by 
employees in the bargaining unit that will result in the layoff of one or more current employees, the 

District will afford the Union the opportunity to meet and discuss alternatives to such layoff before 
the layoff becomes effective. 

 
H. To designate and to assign all work duties and overlapping duties as the needs of the District and 
patient care require. 

 
I. To introduce new duties and to review or add job classifications and duties within the unit. 

 
J. To determine promotional opportunities and the need for and the qualifications of new 
employees, transfers, and promotions. 

 
K. To discipline, suspend, demote or discharge an employee, subject only to the specific limitations 
imposed herein. 



8  

L. To determine the need for additional education courses, training programs, on-the- job training 
and cross-training, and to assign employees to such duties for periods to be determined by the 
District. 

 
The exercise of any management prerogative, function or right which is not specifically modified by 
this Agreement is not subject to the grievance procedure, to arbitration, or as set forth above, to 
bargaining during the term of this Agreement, as long as none of those prerogatives, functions or 
rights violate the Public Employees Bargaining Act (PECBA). 

 
ARTICLE 4 STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS 

 

Section 1. No Strike: 
 

As long as this Agreement remains in force, the Union or its members as individuals or as a group 
will not participate in any strike, work stoppage, slow-down or other restriction of work against the 
District. Violation of this Article shall fulfill just-cause requirements for disciplinary action under the 
provisions of Article 12 hereof. 

 
Section 2. Union Obligation: 

 

In the event of a strike, work stoppage, slow-down, picketing or other restriction of work in any 
form, either on the basis of individual choice or collective employee conduct during the life and 
duration of this Agreement, the Union will immediately, upon notification from the District, attempt 
to secure an immediate and orderly return to work. 

Section 3. No Lockout: 
 

There will be no lockout of employees in the unit by the District as a consequence of any dispute 
relating to the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 5 NON-DISCRIMINATION 

 

The District and the Union jointly recognize that they are required by law not to discriminate against 
any person by reason of Union membership, or the absence thereof, the service as an officer or 
agent of the Union, age, race, religion, color, sex, national origin or ancestry, political affiliation or 
the presence of a physical or sensory handicap. Inasmuch as there are other means of redress 
available to any claim of discrimination relative to the above or related items, the parties agree that 
an alleged violation of the above shall not be considered as a violation of the terms of this 
Agreement. 



9  

ARTICLE 6 HOURS AND OVERTIME 
 

Section 1. Work Schedule: 
 

A. Posting: 

 
The work week shall be consistent with the operating requirements of the District and recognizing 
the necessity for continuous service throughout the week, as determined by the District. Work 
schedules shall be as determined by the District based on the needs of patient care. The work shift 
shall consist of eight (8), ten (10) or twelve (12) hours per day or less. As it applies to the LPN’s, 
CMA’s, and CNA’s working in the hospital, the monthly work schedules showing the employee’s 
regularly scheduled shift, workdays and hours shall be posted at least fourteen (14) days prior to the start 
of the new schedule. Except for situations determined in the judgment of the District to be 
emergencies, changes in work schedules shall be posted at least seven (7) days prior to the effective 
date of any change. In case of emergencies or other conditions outside the control of the District, 
work schedules may be modified at the option of the District. In such cases, a reasonable attempt 
will be made to notify each employee affected as soon as practicable. 

 
B. Overtime 

 
I. In the event overtime may be required, such as when additional duties are assigned 

temporarily in order to provide appropriate coverage, employees are encouraged to discuss 
with their respective supervisor whether overtime would be appropriate. 

 
II. Overtime for any hours after 12 ½ hours worked, per shift worked. This only applies to LPN’s, 

CNA’s and CMA’s working at the hospital. However it is agreed that for all others, overtime 
for time worked after 40 hours in a week, will be credited at the rate of pay for which the time 
was actually worked (such as ambulance). 

 
III. Any need for overtime, will be discussed between the employee and his/her Department 

Head. The Department Head must approve any overtime for the department. 
 

IV. Housekeeping will be allowed to flex their schedule to work one week of 48 hours and 
one week of 32 hours. Overtime will be paid in excess of the eight (8) hours scheduled 
for each day. 

 
C. Shift Trades & Changes: 

 
Shift trades may be requested on the established District form. The shift trade request must also 
specify a reciprocal trade to take place within the same pay period. When a shift trade occurs, the 
employee not working the shift is not eligible to take vacation time for that shift. There will be no 
shift trades that result in overtime. There will be no employee requested shift changes to the current 
schedule that result in overtime. 



10  

D. Flex Time: 

 
At the initiation of an employee or the District and only with the voluntary agreement of the other 
party, an alternative to the regularly scheduled day or work week may be worked. A flexed scheduled 
may change the starting and/or ending time of one or more work days and may change the number 
of hours worked in a day or on several days. A flexed schedule shall not, however, change the total 
number of hours worked in the FLSA bi-weekly work period. Notwithstanding the requirements of 
Section A of this Article and of ORS 279.340, and as specifically allowed by ORS 279.342(5)(b), a 
flexed work schedule shall not result in the payment of overtime. 

 
E. Work Period: 

 
Each employee’s 14-day FLSA pay period shall be annotated on his/her work schedule. 

 
Section 2. Rest Periods: 

 

All employees work schedules shall provide for a 15-minute rest period, measured from when the 
employee leaves the job to the time when the employee returns, during each one-half 8-hour or 10- 
hour shift. Rest periods shall be scheduled at or as near to as possible the middle of each one-half 8- 
hour or 10-hour shift or one-third of a 12 hour shift in which, three 15-minute rest periods shall be 
taken. 

 
Section 3. Meal Periods: 

 

All employees who are scheduled to work more than five (5) consecutive hours on a particular day 
shall be granted a minimum one-half (1/2) hour uncompensated meal period on that work shift 
unless the individual employee voluntarily agrees to waive the meal period. When any member of 
the nursing staff is not allowed to leave the building for a meal period they will be paid their regular 
wage for a 30 minute meal period. If they are able to leave the facility, they must clock out when 
they do so. 

 
Section 4. Overtime Distribution: 

 

Concerns about how overtime is distributed among the bargaining unit members will be discussed as 
they arise. 

 
Section 5. Call In: 

 

Employees called in due to an emergency or for other reasons shall be paid a minimum of two (2) 
hours pay at the applicable rate. 

When an employee is called in for an activity that does not require him/her to work all of the above- 
specified two-hour minimum, the District shall have the right to assign alternative activities for the 
remainder of the two-hour period. 



11  

Section 6. Shift Premium: 
 

LPNs, CNAs and CMAs shall receive a shift premium of $1.20 per hour for all hours of any shift 
which ends between 8:00 p.m. and 2:00 a.m., and $1.50 per hour for any shift which ends after 2:00 
and before 8:00 a.m. Shift premiums shall only apply to overtime work of greater than 4 hours 
which is a continuation of the employee’s regular shift. Shift premium will not apply to paid leave 
time. 

 
Section 7. Reporting Time: 

 

Any employee who presents for work as scheduled and finds that their regular work duties are not 
available due to an ill provider , low census, or other unforeseen circumstances will be assigned work 
by the Department Head for one-half of the shift they were scheduled to work. The Department 
Head may also assign additional work hours as he/she deems fit. If no additional work is available 
and if approved by the Department Head, the employee may leave and use vacation time to make 
up the remainder of the shift. 

 
Section 8. Per Diem: 

 

Reimbursement for authorized mileage, meals and lodging shall be as outlined in Morrow County 
Health District Policy. (Policy Stat ID: 3262048) 

 
ARTICLE 7 VACATION TIME 

 

Section 1: Accrual 
 

Upon completion of four months of their initial probationary service period as defined in Article 1, 
Section 2-C, an employee shall be credited with 0.088462 vacation hours for each hour worked. 

 

Employee Years Hours Accrued For 
Each Hour Worked 

Approximate Annual 
Hours 

Approximate Annual 
Eight (8) Hour Days 

4 months to 5 years 0.088462 184 23 

5 years to 10 years .100000 208 26 

10 years to 20 years .119231 248 31 

20 or more years .138462 288 36 

 
Section 2: Vacation Time 

 

A. Only those non-overtime hours that the employee is paid for shall count as hours- 

worked for purposes of vacation credit excluding call-time hours.  The exception to this 

is holiday overtime hours worked. 



12  

B. Vacation shall accrue to a maximum of 320 hours, after which all additional 

accumulated vacation shall be paid out per pay period. 

C. Employees shall use 72 hours of vacation per year in full day increments. Partial days 

will not count towards the 72 hours. For purposes of accrual and use of vacation, a 

fiscal year shall be defined as July 1st to the following year 30th of June. 

D. Probationary employees will not be paid their accumulate vacation if employment 

ceases prior to completion of their initial four (4) month probationary period. 

E. If scheduled vacation is cancelled by the District in the last quarter, the vacation can 

be rescheduled in the next quarter and will not be subtracted from the bank. 

Section 3: Vacation Time Donation 
 

In the event of a specific need, such as an urgent hardship or a family emergency, an employee 
may request a donation of vacation time from other employees within the District. In order to 
ensure that the process for vacation time donation is equitable, and to promote the responsible 
use of each employee’s vacation time, the following process will be followed for all vacation time 
donation requests. 

 
A. In order to request a vacation time donation, an employee must have no more than 

two weeks worth of vacation time accrued in his or her account. 
B. An employee must first speak with the Human Resources Director to request that a 

vacation time donation notice be posted. 

C. A notice of the vacation time request will be E-Mailed to each employee of MCHD 
D. The names of employees donating time will not be posted publicly or released to the 

beneficiary. 

E. Any employee desiring to donate time must do so in writing and submit the request to the 
H.R. Director. Employees may send an email or other written and signed request to the H.R. 
Director. 

F. Employees with less than 80 hours in their personal vacation bank will be ineligible to 
donate vacation time. 

G. Only one vacation time request may be posted for each unique qualifying event. Exceptions 
based on unforeseen circumstances can be made for each qualifying event. 

H. Employees may not donate more than 16 hours of vacation time per request. 
 

The value of vacation time is based on the salary of the individual that earned the vacation time. 
Because all vacation time donations must retain their original value, the actual hours of vacation 
t i m e received through a donation will be adjusted to reflect the value of the vacation time in 
relation to the salary of the donation recipient. 

 
Section 4.Vacation Time Request: 

 

Employees shall be permitted to request any accrued vacation as either a split or single period of 
time for a maximum of two (2) weeks unless otherwise approved. Whenever possible, consistent 



13  

with the District’s judgment as to the needs and requirements for vacation relief, employees may 
schedule their vacation. The District shall have the final determination of long-term vacation use 
based on operational considerations. An employee shall normally notify the District in writing of 
his/her rescheduling request no later than thirty (30) days prior to the start of the requested 
vacation. The District shall approve or deny such requests. 

 
When conflicting vacation requests are received, vacation shall be scheduled on a first-request- 
received-has-priority basis for up to twelve (12) months prior to the first day of the requested 
vacation period. All long-term vacation time taken shall be treated as hours worked for purposes of 
computing overtime pursuant to Article 6, Section 1-B of this Agreement. 

 
Section 5. Holidays: 

 

Employees that are not required to work the holiday shall have the choice of using vacation for that 
day, or not using vacation for the day. 

 

New Year’s Day Labor Day 

Martin Luther King Day Veterans Day 

President’s Day Thanksgiving 

Memorial Day Friday After Thanksgiving 

Independence Day Christmas Day 

 
Employees who work on the above-designated days shall be paid one and one-half (1 1/2) times 
their regular hourly rate according to the weighted average method for such work and may also take 
vacation for that day. No vacation used for above holidays by employees working will count toward 
overtime. 

 

Holidays which fall during the initial probationary period of full-time employees who are not 
assigned to a patient care activity shall not result in a reduction in regular pay for the employee. All 
such days shall, however, be deducted from the employee’s initial grant of vacation time upon 
completion of the probationary period or if the employee fails to complete the probationary period, 
the time paid for but not worked shall be deducted from the employee’s final pay. 



14  

ARTICLE 9 SICK LEAVE BANK 

 

Section 1. Accrual: 
 

Employees shall be credited with .0462 hours of sick leave for each regularly scheduled hour 

worked to a maximum of 960 hours (120 days). 

 
Section 2. Utilization of Sick Leave Bank: 

 

Employees who have completed the initial probationary period of employment may use their Sick 
Leave Bank in the following manner: 

 
Sick Leave Use: 

 
A. Unlimited use of accrued sick leave for any self-sickness, medical or medically-related 

appointments: doctor, dentist, vision, diagnostic testing, physical therapy, alternative 
medicine including licensed naturopath, chiropractor and acupuncturist, mental health 
appointments with a state licensed clinician. Employees are expected to schedule such 
appointments so as to minimize time lost from work; on non-work days when possible or at a 
time of day when least amount of work will be missed (a few hours to ½ day whenever 
possible). 

 
B. A total of eighty (80) hours of sick leave per fiscal year may be used for Family Member’s 

Illnesses & injuries, and Serious Medical Conditions as defined by the Oregon Family Leave 
Act (OFLA) & the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) pending a doctor’s certification, in 
addition to appointments related to those conditions. 

 

C. Once 80 hours of sick leave has been used for family members, additional time can be taken 
from the employee’s Vacation bank. When no Vacation Time is available for use, the 
employee may use Sick Leave for the same family members for the same qualifying reasons. 

 
D. Certification of as Serious Medical condition must be completed and signed by the physician 

and turned into the Human Resources (HR) office. Employees need to contact the HR 
office for each period of leave longer than 3 days so that appropriate OFLA/FMLA 
determinations can be made. 

 
Family Members: 

 
A. Covered family members include your spouse, same-gender domestic partner, biological child, 

adopted child, stepchild, foster child, same-gender domestic partner’s child, parent, grandparent, 
grandchild, and any individual with whom an employee has or has had an in loco parentis* 
relationship. 
 

*”In loco parentis” means in the place of a parent – that is, people with day to day responsibilities 
to care for or financially support a child, or who had such a responsibility for the employee when 



15  

the employee was a child. 
 

Planned Sick Leave Events: 

 
A. For planned surgeries, maternity leave and any other periods of leave known in advance, 

employees are required to give at least 30 days notice to their Department Head and the HR 
office whenever possible by completing a blue NOTICE OF INTENDED OFLA/FLMA 
LEAVE. 

 
Emergencies: 

 
A. Notification of emergencies should be given to the employee’s Department Head at the 

earlier possible time. The Department Head will notify the HR office. 

 
Section 3. Bereavement Leave: 

 

Bereavement leave will be in accordance with Oregon Family Medical Leave standards. 

 
Section 4. Termination: 

 

All sick leave benefits shall terminate and/or be forfeited upon termination of employment for any 
reason. 

 

Section 5. Limitations: 
 

No employee shall be entitled to sick leave pay while absent from duty due to the following causes: 

 
A. Sickness or disability sustained while on leave of absence without pay. 

 
B. Inability to properly perform required duties because of intoxication. 

 

C. Injury or illness for which the employee is eligible for industrial insurance benefits from an 
employer other that the District, except to the extent that sick leave may be used to 
supplement workers compensation to equal the employee’s regular take home pay. 

 
Section 6. Medical Evaluation: 

 

Any employee returning to employment following an absence for medical reasons, whether sick leave 
was paid or not, as well as any employee who, while in the continuous employ of the District 
becomes unable to perform a significant portion of the duties of the position to which he/she is 
assigned, may, as a condition of returning to work or continued employment, be required to submit to 
an independent medical examination or evaluation to be conducted at the expense of the District. 

 
If the employee so desires, such examination and/or evaluation shall be conducted by a physician who 
specializes in the specific area of concern of inquiry involved and shall be conducted outside the District. 



16  

The District will reimburse the employee for necessary travel at the current IRS rate per mile 

and for all reasonable costs for lodging and meals. 

 
The District will not terminate any employee as a result of the evaluation as long as: 

 
A. Suitable alternative work for which the employee is qualified can be located. 

 
B. There is a likelihood of improvement in the employee’s condition to the degree that employment 
with the District would be possible. In such cases, the employee may be placed upon a non-paid 
leave of absence. 

 
Section 7. Return to Work: 

 

Employees must have physician release to return to work after 4 (four) or more consecutive sick leave 
days. 

 

ARTICLE 10 PAID LEAVE 

 

Section 1. Court Leave: 

All employees shall be granted leave with full pay, computed on the basis of eight (8) hours pay at the 
employee’s regular straight-time hourly rate, any time they are required to report for jury duty or jury 
service. An eligible employee shall endorse any jury fee (excluding mileage and meal allowances) to the 
District as a condition to the receipt of jury pay. If an employee is excused or dismissed from jury duty 
or service prior to noon, he/she shall promptly report for work. Any employee required to appear in 
court as a witness, provided they are not a party in interest, shall also be subject to the above 
provision, provided that any employee appearing on behalf of an action against the District or on 
behalf of the Union shall receive such time off but shall not be compensated therefore. 

 

Section 2. Military Leave: 
 

Military leave shall be with or without pay as provided by applicable state or federal statute. 

 
ARTICLE 11 LAYOFF AND RECALL 

 

Section 1. Layoff: 

 

In the event of a layoff of employees, selection of employees to be retained will be in accordance with 
the seniority within the affected job classification(s), provided that all part-time employees covered by 
this Agreement and working within such classification, regardless of seniority status, shall be laid off 
before full-time employees are subject to layoff, so long as the senior full-time employee(s) possess 
qualifications, aptitude and ability to perform the work equal to those of the employee(s) 
to be laid off. 

 



17  

Only in the event of a layoff shall employees have bumping rights. An employee displaced from 
his/her job by reason of a layoff shall be entitled to bump or displace an employee in an equal or lower 
job classification, provided the displacing employee has greater District seniority and possesses 
qualifications, aptitude and ability to perform the work equal to the employee he/she displaces. 

 
In the event the Union considers the District’s above determination as to relative qualifications, 
aptitudes and abilities to have been arbitrary or in bad faith, it may submit that question as a grievance 
for handling in accordance with the grievance procedure, commencing at Step Two thereof. 

 
Section 2. Recall: 
In the event a layoff has occurred, employees will be recalled by classification in the reverse order of 
layoff. An employee who is laid off will remain on the laid-off list and be eligible for recall for twelve 
(12) Months. The District shall notify a laid-off employee of a position opening(s) by certified letter, 
return receipt requested, at his/her address of record as maintained in the employee’s personnel file. It 
shall be the employee’s responsibility to insure that his/her current address is on file at the time the 
layoff occurs. Notification of any change of address following the date of layoff shall be in writing by 
certified mail to the District Administration. The laid-off employee shall personally notify the District 
Administration within seven (7) days or send by certified mail a letter of intent postmarked no later 
than seven (7) days from the date of receipt of such notification, indicating his/her acceptance or 
rejection of the position and have an additional fourteen (14) days the reform in which to begin active 
employment. If the employee cannot be reached at his/her address of record (return of certified letter), 
fails to respond within the allotted time or if he/she rejects any position offered to him or her, he/she 
shall forfeit all reemployment rights. 

 

Employees who wish to waive reemployment rights may do so by written notification to the District. 

 
Employees returning from layoff shall have previously accrued sick leave and seniority reinstated. 

 
 

ARTICLE 12 EMPLOYEE RIGHTS 
 

Section 1. Discipline: 
 

A. Disciplinary action shall include the following: 

 
1. Verbal Warning 

 
2. Written reprimand. 

 
3. Suspension. 

 
4. Discharge. 

 
Disciplinary action may be imposed upon any employee, in a progressive manner in the sequence 
specified above, or as may otherwise be deemed appropriate, for failing to fulfill his/her 
responsibilities as an employee. Conduct which tends to undermine confidence in the quality of 



18  

patient care provided by the District, or which is a hindrance to the effective performance of the 
District’s functions, shall be considered just cause for disciplinary action. Such just cause may also 
include misconduct, inefficiency, incompetence, failure to follow job-related instructions, inability or 
unwillingness to work with certain classifications of patients, the willful giving of false, malicious or 
confidential information concerning the District, patients, or staff, or the withholding of information 
when making application for employment, or willful violation of District or departmental rules. Any 
disciplinary action imposed upon an employee shall be protested only as a grievance pursuant to 
Article 13 of this Agreement. All such grievances shall be filed at Step Two as the first step, within the 
time limit (10 days) allowed at that step. If the department head or other supervisor has reason to 
discipline an employee, he/she shall make reasonable efforts to impose such discipline in a manner 
that will not embarrass or humiliate the employee before other employees or the public. 

 

B.  All employees shall be afforded the opportunity to have a Union Steward present at any disciplinary 
investigation or disciplinary meeting. Any Disciplinary Action taken on an employee under the 
classifications in the bargaining unit will have an emailed copy sent to the Local Union President and 
Council Representative by a union steward. 

 
C. All employees, except probationary, covered by this Agreement shall be discharged only for just 
cause. The protest of the discharge of any employee shall be made only through the grievance 
procedure set forth in Article 13. 

 

Section 2. Filing of Job Openings: 
 

Whenever there is a job opening (which is covered by this agreement) to be filled, notice of such 
opening will be posted on the work area bulletin board for a period of one (1) week to provide 
employees the opportunity to bid by written application on that job. The District may advertise the 
position simultaneously with the posting. Where in the supervisor’s judgment relative qualifications, 
aptitude and ability to perform the work are equal between two or more applicants for the posted 
opening, the employee with the most District service shall be offered the position. In the event the 
Union considers the supervisor’s selection to have been arbitrary or in bad faith, it may submit that 
question as a grievance for handling in accordance with the grievance procedure, commencing as Step 
Two thereof. 

 

 
Section 3. Change in Job Assignment: 

 

Any employee who is promoted or assigned to a new job classification shall serve a four-month 
probationary assignment in such new classification. The probationary period may be extended up to 
an additional 4 months by the supervisor if he or she feels the employee has not received enough 
experience or training and needs additional time to orient to the position. During the initial four-
month period, and only during this first four months, the employee may be returned to his/her 
previous position without recourse to the grievance procedure or any other claim of a violation 
hereof. For benefit purposes, an employee who has transferred to a new position and has not 
completed probation in their prior position will be given credit for time worked in a benefit eligible 
position from the most recent hire date. 

 



19  

Section 4. Personnel Files: 
 

Each employee shall have the right to inspect his/her personnel file upon reasonable advance notice. 
The District shall not introduce material into the personnel file that is of a substantially evaluative 
nature without providing a copy of such material to the employee. The employee shall have the right 
to submit a statement explaining his/her side of the story to any personnel file entry that he/she 
disagrees with. The employee shall have any disciplinary materials/documents removed from their 
Personnel file three (3) years after completion of last disciplinary resolution, upon request, if there has 
been no further disciplinary action. 

 
Section 5. Employee Resignations: 

 

As a condition of eligibility for a favorable reference for employment, an employee must have 
provided the District with at least fourteen (14) days written advance notice of resignation. For 
purposes of post-employment inquiries, any employee who has not provided such advance notice shall 
be included among those employees who were terminated not in good standing. 

 
Section 6. Step Advancement: 

 

Each employee shall serve four (4) months at Starting Step to qualify for advancement to Step 1 and 
serve twelve (12) months to qualify for advancement to each successive step on the wage schedule 
attached hereto with the exception of which are based on longevity. All such step advancements shall 
be subject to satisfactory performance; however, no employee shall be denied a step increase unless 
he/she was advised with written confirmation at least three (3) months prior to the date the increase 
was due to those areas where performance deficiencies exist and has failed to adequately correct the 
specified deficiencies thereafter. Denial of step increase shall not be for arbitrary or capricious reasons 
and shall be subject to the grievance procedure if the employee feels that such denial was arbitrary or 
capricious. 

 

Section 7. Pay Periods: 

 

Pay shall be bi-weekly and shall normally be available on the first Friday following the end of the bi- 
weekly pay period. 

 
Section 8: Vacation and Benefit Accrual 

 

The years of service used to calculate an employee’s vacation time accrual rate will not change if a 
union member employed by the District assumes a different position within the organization, either 
voluntarily or involuntarily. Likewise, an employee who changes positions within the District will 
retain any accrued vacation time and sick leave. The employee must be working in a benefit eligible 
position in order to qualify for both vacation time and sick leave. 

 

ARTICLE 13 SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES 
 

Section 1. Grievance and Arbitration Procedure: 



20  

 

Any dispute which may arise between the parties concerning the application, meaning or 
interpretation of this Agreement is defined as a grievance and shall be settled in the following manner: 

 
Step One: 

 

The affected employee or employee representative shall communicate the grievance verbally or in 
writing to the employee’s most immediate supervisor not within the bargaining unit within fifteen 
(15) days of the occurrence of the grievance or employee’s demonstrated first knowledge of same. 
The supervisor shall have ten (10) days in which to respond to the grievance. 

 
Step Two: 

 

If the grievance is not resolved at Step One, it shall within ten (10) days of the supervisor’s response 
or within thirty-five (35) days of its occurrence or the employee’s demonstrated first knowledge of 
same, if such is earlier, the grievance shall be submitted to the District Administrator. Such 
presentation shall be reduced to writing and shall specify the specific District action or lack of action 
which is the cause of the grievance, the specific article or articles and sections or paragraphs thereof 
alleged to have been violated and the remedy sought. The District Administrator will have fifteen 

(15) days in which to make a response in writing to the grievance. 
 
Step Three: 

 

If the grievance remains unresolved after completion of action at Step Two hereof, either party shall, 
within fifteen (15) days of the written response of the District under Step Two, have the right to have 
the matter submitted to final and binding arbitration by providing written notice to the other party of 
its intent to do so. The parties shall first attempt to select an arbitrator who is mutually acceptable. If 
within ten (10) days from the request for arbitration the parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator, 
the Oregon State Conciliation Service shall be requested to submit a list of five (5) names. Both the 
District and the Union shall have the right to strike two (2) names from the list. The party requesting 
arbitration shall strike the first name and the other party shall then strike one name. The process shall 
be repeated and the remaining person shall be the arbitrator. The designated arbitrator shall set a time 
and place for hearing which is agreeable to both parties. The arbitrator shall be required to determine 
which of the parties prevailed in the grievance and shall bill all fees and expenses to the party that did 
not prevail. If several issues are in dispute, the arbitrator may determine which party prevailed on the 
various portions of the case and apportion fees and expenses accordingly. Each party shall be 
responsible for compensating its own representatives and witnesses. If either party desires a verbatim 
recording of the proceedings, it may cause such a record to be made, provided it pays for the record 
and makes a copy available without charge to the arbitrator. If the other party desires a copy, both 
parties shall jointly share the cost of the transcript and all copies. The arbitrator shall have authority to 
consider only a claim based upon a specific provision of this Agreement and shall have no authority to 
add to, modify or detract from this Agreement. Any decision of the arbitrator within the scope of this 
Agreement shall be final and binding upon the parties. 

 
Section 2. Time Periods: 

 



21  

The time periods specified in the Article may be extended or modified only by mutual written 
consent. Failure by the Union to comply with a specified time period shall constitute acceptance of 
the District’s position in the matter. Failure by the District to comply with a specified time period 
shall constitute a rejection of the grievance at that step, thereby automatically moving the grievance to 
the next step. 

 
Section 3. Processing of Grievance: 

Employee will be paid for time spent during regular working hours meeting with District officials for 
the purpose of processing grievances or resolving contract administration issues, but will not be paid 
for meeting time that falls outside regular working hours. Time off with pay for the purpose of 
investigating or preparing grievances for arbitration or other third-party hearings will not be allowed. 
Time off without loss of pay will however be allowed when the District requires an employee to 
attend an arbitration or third-party hearing. 

 
Section 4. Determination of Merit: 

 

The provisions of this Article shall not be interpreted to require that the Union process any 
grievance through the grievance or arbitration procedure which it believes lacks sufficient merit. 

 
ARTICLE 14 NON-PAID LEAVE 

 

Section 1. Child Care Leave: 
 

Leave for child care shall be provided for by applicable Oregon and federal laws. Any issue 
concerning such leave may be addressed as a grievance through Steps One and Two of the grievance 
procedure, but shall be pursued to Step Three or otherwise serve as the basis for a claim of violation 
of this Agreement. 

 
Section 2. Education Leave: 

 

Leave may be granted to employees who propose to take course work to attend seminars or 
conferences that would improve their value to the District for up to two (2) successive semesters for 
an employee with at least one (1) year of continuous service. 

 
Section 3. Medical Disability Leave: 

 

An employee with more than one (1) year of continuous service who has exhausted all available paid 

disability leave and vacation shall be eligible for up to a 6-month leave of absence if he/she can provide 
a doctor’s certificate as to disability and further certification to the effect that he/she will be sufficiently 
recovered at the conclusion of the leave period to return to work. 

 
Section 4. Workers Compensation: 

 

In the event of an on-the-job accident (Worker’s Compensation covered) with the District, the 



22  

employee shall be considered to be on a non-paid leave for the period of the temporary disability and 
shall be eligible for immediate reinstatement at the same classification and at the same rate of pay as 
he/she had at the time of the accident. This section shall not be construed so as to prevent the District 
from requiring such an employee to return to work in a limited duty capacity at an earlier date when 
such is approved by the Worker’s Compensation carrier. 

 
Section 5. Leave Requests: 

 

Non-paid leave will normally be requested in writing not less than thirty (30) days in advance. Any 
employee who is on leave shall, as a condition of eligibility to return to work, provide written or 
personal notification to the District Administrator thirty (30) days prior to the date of the termination 
of the leave or their intent to return to work. 

 

ARTICLE 15 SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 

Should any Article, Section or portion of this Agreement be held unlawful and unenforceable by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, or any administrative agency having jurisdiction over the subject 
matter, such decision shall apply only to the specific Article, Section or portion thereof, directly 
specified in the decision. Upon the issuance of any such decision, the parties agree to meet and confer 
at the request of either the Union or the District regarding a successor for such invalidated Article, 
Section or portion thereof. All other portions of this Agreement and the Agreement as a whole shall 
continue without interruption for the term thereof. 

 
ARTICLE 16 ADDITIONAL BENEFITS 

 

Section 1: Medical, Vision and Dental Insurance 
 

Effective through, June 30, 2020 the District will provide physical exams and basic lab work, at no 
charge, to employees covered by this Agreement and their spouses. Employees may contact the 
Pioneer Memorial Hospital laboratory or one of the District’s clinics to receive a current list of 
covered lab work. 

 
The maximum District contribution towards the cost of medical, vision and dental coverage will be: 

 

 $2,714.03 effective January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 
 
The remaining two years of the contract will have the insurance cap increased each year between 10 and 
15 percent depending on the amount of the increase in premiums. 

 

Section 2. Life Insurance 
 

The District shall continue to provide regular part-time & full-time employees with at least $25,000 
term life insurance policy with partial dependent coverage, which shall include accidental death and 
dismemberment. Such employees shall also be provided coverage under a long-term disability plan 
which provides at least 60% of monthly income to a maximum of $1,200 per month after a 6-month 



23  

qualification period. Employees can refer to the current life insurance handbook for specific details. 

 
Section 3. Part-Time Employees and New Employees: 

 

Regular part-time employees shall receive a prorated contribution towards the cost of the fringe 
benefits specified in this Article. The pro-rate shall be based upon the relationship of the part-time 
employee’s hours worked in comparison to a 40 hour work week. Eligibility for insurance coverage shall 
commence upon the sixty (60th) day following hire and will begin on the first (1st) day of the following 
month. 

 

Section 4. Retirement: 
 

The District provides a Section 401(a) retirement plan, in which a percentage of base pay is deposited 
quarterly into an investment account for each eligible employee. All regular part-time or full-time 
employees who have completed their initial probation by the last day of the quarter and are still 
employed as regular part-time or full-time on the last day of the quarter are eligible for participation. 
The District contribution to that plan shall be a minimum of five (5) percent, which may be increased 
by one percent (1%) per hundred thousand dollars of excess revenue according to Audited annual 
financial statements, to a maximum of 6 %. 

 
The rate will be effective on January 1, 2018. The rate plan will be recalculated based on the Audited 
financials each January thereafter. Base pay shall include all regular hours worked and all benefit 
eligible hours used during the quarter, including PTO and sick leave. Overtime and call time/call back 
are excluded. The employee shall have the right to make additional contributions from his/her own 
pay to a Section 457 Deferred Compensation plan or other Tax Sheltered Annuity offered by the 
District, to the maximum extent allowed by law. 

 
Section 5: Air Ambulance Membership 

 

The District will provide annual coverage for all benefit eligible employees and any household members 
as per the Air Ambulance Company’s policies. 

 
Section 6. Tri-County Ambulance Membership. 

 

The District will provide annual coverage for all benefit-eligible employees and their eligible dependent 
family members covered by this Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE 17 COMPENSATION 
 

Section 1. Wages: 
 

A. Employees shall be compensated in accordance with Appendix A, attached hereto and made a 
part of the Agreement. Appendix A will be changed to reflect the COLA increases effective July 1 of 
each year of this Agreement. The new wage scale will be effective the first full pay period following 



24  

contract ratification. Employees shall be placed in the appropriate step based on their length of 
service in their position. 

 
B. Effective upon signing of agreement employees shall be given a COLA increase of 3 % to 4.5%, 
based on the Bureau of Labor Statistics website, CPI-W All Items, 12 month % change as extracted 
during April of each year. That increase shall be effective July 1 of each year of this Agreement, 
beginning July 1, 2022. 

 
Both the Union and management will utilize the Bureau of Labor Statistics website, CPI-W All Items, 
12 month % change for determining each year’s COLA increase. 

 
C. All salary changes will be implemented in the pay period that includes July 1. 

 
Section 2. Movement on Schedule: 

 

Employees shall be eligible for a step increase in accordance with Article 12, Section 6. 

 
Section 3. Initial Placement: 

 

Newly hired employees shall normally be placed at the start step of the salary schedule. Additional 
steps may be granted for prior experience or qualifications. 

 
Section 4. On-Call/Standby: 

 

Employees required to be on-call shall be compensated for all hours on such status at the following 
rates: 

7/1/22   $5.50 

7/1/23   $6.00 

7/1/24   $6.50 

 

Plus an additional $1.00 per hour on District recognized Holidays. 

 
 

Section 5. Longevity 

Longevity steps begin at step 5. 

Part-time EMT’s shall be compensated at the level on Appendix A equivalent to ½ of their total years 
of service to the District. 

 
 

   Section 6.Merit Bonus Committee 
 

In considering whether to award a bonus, administration will consider, but is not limited to, the 
following factors: 



25  

 
 

 Significant added duties outside of the employee’s usual scope of duties over one pay period of 
time. 

 

 Taking on a substantial, complex, or sensitive project, which requires significant time, 
organization and work in addition to the person’s regular duties. 

 

 Assuming lead or supervisor duties over a *significant period of time. 
 

 Performing significant additional duties as a result of vacancies in the department over a 
*prolonged period of time. 

 
 

*A prolonged or significant period of time is determined based on the specific circumstances. For 
example, assuming supervision of additional employees presents more of a burden than assuming 
administrative duties such as scheduling and as such a shorter time period may be considered 
“prolonged” or “significant.” 

 
 

There are typically two types of bonuses which may be awarded: 
 

 An hourly increase, the amount of which is based on the type of work performed.  

 A one-time bonus, typically awarded for project-based work, the amount of which is based on 
the type of work performed and the length of time involved.



 

ARTICLE 18 DURATION 

 
This Agreement shall become effective on the day of signing and shall remain in full force and 

effective through June 30, 20203. The parties agree to commence negotiations by January 31st of the 

year in which this Agreement expires. This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and shall be 

binding upon any successor by assignment, merger, consolidation, transfer or otherwise of either 

party. 

 
The parties recognize that the District is supported in part by funding from tax sources. Therefore, in 

the event a tax or expenditure limitation is adopted which negatively affects the revenue available to 

the District, or in the event the District fails to gain voter approval of a levy sufficient to support 

existing levels of service and also provide for additional expenditures to fund the wage increases 

provided for here.in, the District may, by written notification, reopen negotiations as to wages and 

fringe benefits provided for herein. In the event such option to reopen is exercised, all other 

provisions contained herein shall be unaffected thereby and the wage rates and fringe benefit levels 

in effect upon the date the notice to reopen was sent and shall remain in effect until a successor is 

agreed to. 

 

 
Dated this 1st day of July 2022. 

 

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, 

COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, 

LOCAL 2479-1 AFL-CIO, AFFILIATED 

WITH AFSCME COUNCIL NO. 75 

 

MORROW COUNTY HEALTII DISTRICT 

 

 

 

       __________________________    ______________________________ 

AFSCME Council 75 Representative   MCHD Board Chairperson 

 

 
      __________________________    ______________________________ 
        Local 2479-1 Bargaining Team Member                                          MCHD Bargaining Team Member 

 

 

 

      __________________________    ______________________________ 
        Local 2479-1 Bargaining Team Member                                          MCHD Bargaining Team Member 

 

 

      __________________________    ______________________________ 
        Local 2479-1 Bargaining Team Member                                          MCHD Bargaining Team Member 

     
 

 

 

 

 

25 



 

APPENDIX A             
Union Wages 
Effective  
July 1, 2022 
through  
June 30, 2023       

Include
s 4.5% 
COLA       

 

 4 mos 1.4 yrs 2.4 yrs 3.4 yrs 5.4 yrs 7.4yrs 10.4 yrs 15.4 yrs 20.4 yrs 25.4 yrs 30.4 yrs 

START STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 STEP 6 STEP 7 STEP 8 STEP 9 STEP 10 STEP 11 

Housekeeper I $ 14.88  $ 15.35  $ 15.73  $ 16.18  $ 16.62  $ 17.22  $ 17.69  $ 18.27  $ 18.79  $ 19.35  $ 19.94  $ 20.52  

Housekeeper II $ 16.52  $ 16.97  $ 17.43  $ 17.90  $ 18.38  $ 19.38  $ 20.43  $ 22.09  $ 22.42  $ 22.76  $ 23.10  $ 23.45  

Laundry Aide $ 14.88  $ 15.35            

Cook  $ 17.24  $ 17.71  $ 18.18  $ 18.67  $ 19.19  $ 20.23  $ 21.34  $ 23.12  $ 23.46  $ 23.81  $ 24.17  $ 24.53  

Cook's Helper $ 14.51  $ 14.84            

Dishwasher $ 13.17  $ 13.56            

Clerk I $ 14.27  $ 14.67            

Clerk II $ 16.25  $ 16.69            
Clerk II w/Interp 
Cert $ 18.15  $ 18.60  $ 19.06  $ 19.44  $ 19.86  $ 20.40  $ 20.95  $ 21.52  $ 22.09  $ 22.71  $ 23.33  $ 23.97  

Clerk III $ 19.12  $ 19.63  $ 20.11  $ 20.62  $ 21.14  $ 21.66  $ 22.31  $ 22.83  $ 23.52  $ 24.23  $ 24.96  $ 25.70  
Clerk III 
w/Interp Cert $ 20.89  $ 21.40  $ 21.89  $ 22.39  $ 22.91  $ 23.44  $ 24.09  $ 24.76  $ 25.45  $ 26.16  $ 26.89  $ 27.65  

Clerk IV $ 23.01  $ 23.59  $ 24.18  $ 24.78  $ 25.41  $ 26.04  $ 26.82  $ 27.61  $ 28.45  $ 29.30  $ 30.18  $ 31.10  
Clerk IV 
w/Interp Cert $ 24.78  $ 25.37  $ 25.95  $ 26.56  $ 27.18  $ 27.81  $ 28.60  $ 29.38  $ 30.22  $ 31.08  $ 31.96  $ 32.87  

Clerk V $ 29.69  $ 30.44  $ 31.20  $ 31.99  $ 32.79  $ 33.61  $ 34.62  $ 35.65  $ 36.73  $ 37.82  $ 38.96  $ 40.13  

Transcriptionist $ 18.29  $ 18.64  $ 18.88  $ 19.35  $ 19.73  $ 20.32  $ 20.93  $ 21.53  $ 22.21  $ 22.87  $ 23.55  $ 24.30  
Info Tech 
Specialist $ 24.60  $ 25.21  $ 25.84  $ 26.49  $ 27.15  $ 27.83  $ 28.67  $ 29.54  $ 30.43  $ 31.34  $ 32.28  $ 33.24  

Maintenance I $ 22.75  $ 23.32  $ 23.91  $ 24.50  $ 25.11  $ 25.73  $ 26.51  $ 27.31  $ 28.12  $ 28.96  $ 29.84  $ 30.73  

Maintenance II $ 24.87  $ 25.33  $ 25.76  $ 26.21  $ 26.65  $ 27.44  $ 28.26  $ 29.12  $ 30.00  $ 30.90  $ 31.81  $ 32.75  
Med Assist 
Trainee $ 18.57  $ 19.05            
Med Assist I 
Non-Cert $ 19.15  $ 19.73  $ 20.29  $ 20.93  $ 21.52  $ 22.20  $ 22.85  $ 23.52  $ 24.27  $ 24.98  $ 25.72  $ 26.48  
Med Assist I 
W/Cert $ 20.15  $ 20.73  $ 21.29  $ 21.93  $ 22.52  $ 23.20  $ 23.85  $ 24.52  $ 25.27  $ 25.98  $ 26.72  $ 27.48  
Med Assist 
w/ltd xray $ 21.52  $ 22.10  $ 22.65  $ 23.31  $ 23.88  $ 24.57  $ 25.21  $ 25.88  $ 26.64  $ 27.35  $ 28.08  $ 28.84  
Lab Assist 
Trainee $ 18.57  $ 19.05            

Lab Assistant $ 19.15  $ 19.73  $ 20.29  $ 20.93  $ 21.52  $ 22.20  $ 22.85  $ 23.52  $ 24.27  $ 24.98  $ 25.72  $ 26.48  

Phlebotomist $ 16.36  $ 17.10  $ 17.52  $ 17.96  $ 18.41  $ 18.87  $ 19.44  $ 20.02  $ 20.62  $ 21.24  $ 21.88  $ 22.53  

CNA I $ 17.36  $ 17.78  $ 18.19  $ 18.58  $ 19.07  $ 19.64  $ 20.23  $ 20.85  $ 21.45  $ 22.08  $ 22.75  $ 23.43  

CNA II $ 18.00  $ 18.49  $ 18.99  $ 19.50  $ 20.02  $ 21.12  $ 22.28  $ 24.13  $ 24.49  $ 24.86  $ 25.23  $ 25.61  
CNA I+Med 
Aide/RA $ 20.36  $ 20.78  $ 21.19  $ 21.58  $ 22.07  $ 22.64  $ 23.23  $ 23.85  $ 24.45  $ 25.08  $ 25.75  $ 26.43  
CNA II+Med 
Aide $ 21.00  $ 21.49  $ 21.99  $ 22.50  $ 23.02  $ 24.12  $ 25.28  $ 27.13  $ 27.49  $ 27.86  $ 28.23  $ 28.61  
Home Health 
Aide $ 19.96  $ 20.42  $ 20.89  $ 21.37  $ 21.87  $ 22.90  $ 23.99  $ 25.74  $ 26.08  $ 26.43  $ 26.78  $ 27.14  



 

Central Supply $ 19.82  $ 20.29  $ 20.70  $ 21.15  $ 21.58  $ 22.25  $ 22.90  $ 23.58  $ 24.31  $ 25.03  $ 25.78  $ 26.55  

LPN $ 26.04  $ 26.54  $ 26.96  $ 28.02  $ 29.04  $ 31.09  $ 32.95  $ 34.29  $ 34.80  $ 35.33  $ 35.86  $ 36.39  

Basic EMT - FT $ 22.09  $ 22.68  $ 23.22  $ 23.81  $ 24.39  $ 25.00  $ 25.76  $ 26.53  $ 27.33  $ 28.16  $ 28.99  $ 29.87  
Basic EMS Lead 
- FT $ 24.09  $ 24.68  $ 25.22  $ 25.81  $ 26.39  $ 27.00  $ 27.76  $ 28.53  $ 29.33  $ 30.16  $ 30.99  $ 31.87  

Inter. EMT - FT $ 25.41  $ 26.05  $ 26.71  $ 27.38  $ 28.05  $ 28.76  $ 29.62  $ 30.52  $ 31.44  $ 32.36  $ 33.35  $ 34.34  

Call = $5.50/hr effective 7/1/22      1/1/2022    

     

EMS-
DRIVER/HLP - 
OPT    $18.00     

     Basic EMT - OPT  $24.00     

     

Intermediate 
EMT - OPT    $28.00     

 



































AGREEMENT FOR STAFFING SERVICES 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made effective this Thursday day of 14, 

2022, by and between Pioneer  Memorial Home Health & Hospice (“Company”) 

located at 162 N. Main St. and Skyline Med Staff, LLC (“Agency”) located at 3506 N 

147th St. Ste. 204, Omaha, NE 68116. 

Recitals: 

WHEREAS, Company is licensed as a Home Health and/or Hospice 

company providing Nursing services to its contracted clients. 

WHEREAS, Agency is in the business of providing licensed health care 

professionals (“Agency Professionals”) to healthcare agencies, and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement, 

Company desires the services of Agency to identify and provide certain Agency 

Professionals to Company that are qualified and compliant with the standards 

identified by the Company. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Company and Agency agree to the following: 

 
 

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
(a) Company will identify available needs for licensed health care professions 

by notifying Agency. Company will notify (among other items) the 

position requested, and the qualification standards required by the 

Company. 

(b) Agency shall notify Company if it has any qualified and interested 

applicants. Agency is not obligated to submit candidates for any position, 

however, presented applicants will only be selected through the process 

outline above in this Section I. 

 
II. SERVICES BY AGENCY 

 
(a) Upon request by the Company, and in accordance with the above described 

process, agency shall use its best efforts to assign Agency Professionals to 

the Company in full compliance with all terms and provisions of this 

Agreement. Agency understands and acknowledges that the providing of 

medical staffing services shall be undertaken by agency on a non-exclusive 

basis, which means that this Agreement shall not preclude the Company 

from using any other agent or entity for recruitment of medical staff. 

(b) Agency shall prescreen Agency Professionals to determine whether their 

qualifications and competence complies with the standards established by the 



Company.  The pre-screening by agency shall include, but not limited to, 

obtaining all pertinent information (hereinafter “Pre-assignment Screening 

Information”) concerning the past employment, licensure, certifications, 

education and professional skills of Agency Professionals. In addition the 

Company will require Agency to conduct a full background and criminal 

record check and OIG regarding the Agency Professional to be assigned to 

Company, the costs of all Pre-assignment Screening shall be borne by the 

Agency. 

(c) In accordance with the Pre-assignment Screening, Agency agrees to provide 

to Company the following documentation (including any additional 

requirements by Company): 

a. Documentation of immunity to PPD, Rubella, Rubeola, Mumps, 

Varicella. 

b. Documentation of Hepatitis B vaccine or annual statement of 

declination. 

c. General statement of Physical Health 

d. Documentation of annual influenza vaccination, or religious and/or 

medical exemption of such. 

e. Current copy of credentials/certification/license including CPR 

certification if required. 

f. Skills sheet and resume for the Agency Professional 

g. References and/or evaluations within the past 12 months 

(d) Agency agrees to acquire the following information to be maintained in each 

Agency Professional’s file: 

a. Comprehensive background screening 

b. Drug screen within one year of assignment to the Company 

(e) Prior to an Agency Professional’s first shift worked at Company, Agency will 

arrange for the Agency Professional to complete general Company 

orientation which may include safety tests, skills test, unit specific 

orientation, review of job description, signed confidentiality statement and 

Company code of conduct. 

(f) Agency Professionals placed with the Company shall comply with agencies 

policy and procedures, state and federal laws and regulations, including, but 

not limited to, the Joint Commission guidelines, OSHA rules and other 

regulatory agency requirements. 

(g) Agency Professionals placed with Company will perform their assignments 

in accordance with their applicable job descriptions and scope of practice. 

(h) Agency shall not provide any personnel who currently have an employment 

relationship with the Company. 

(i) Agency shall provide a certificate of insurance to Company with the 

company named as a certificate holder upon placement of agency 

professional. The certificate of insurance shall provide proof of: 

i. Current professional liability 

ii. General liability 

iii. Automobile liability if applicable to position 

Insurance coverage shall be for not less than $1,000,000 (one million dollars) per 

occurrence and $3,000,000 (three million dollars) in aggregate covering acts and 



omissions, which may give rise to liability for services under this Agreement. 

Workers Compensation insurance shall be provided in accordance with applicable 

state law. 

(j) Agency Professionals shall report any work related injuries incurred while 

placed with Company in accordance with Agency reporting requirements. 

Agency Professionals will report any work related injury to both Agency and 

Company concurrently. 

(k) Agency will maintain direct responsibility for payment of wages and other 

compensation to all Agency Professionals and Agency shall be responsible for 

all applicable mandatory withholdings and contributions of federal, state, and 

local taxes, social security taxes, workers compensation, and unemployment 

insurance for Agency Professionals. 

(l) In accordance with the requirements of the Company, Agency agrees to 

have Agency Professionals available for the Company twenty-four hours 

per day, seven days per week. 

 
III. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMPANY 

 
(a) Company will do an initial orientation for Agency Professionals the first 

time Agency Professionals are placed with Company. 

(b) Performance problems of Agency Professionals placed with Company will 

be documented and reported to Agency in a timely manner. 

(c) Company will comply with the Joint Commission standards including the 

provision of appropriate orientation of the Agency Professional to the unit(s). 

(d) Company will identify a human resource person or appropriate designee 

that is available for communication to Agency Staff. 

(e) As Company controls the working environment of Agency Professionals 

assigned by Agency, Company will be responsible for providing all 

Company- specific training noted in OSHA standards. 

(f) Company retains professional management responsibility for the patient 

and the services provided. Company shall have exclusive responsibility to 

plan the patient’s care and coordinate such care. 

 
 

IV. JOINT RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
(a) Agency agrees to transmit to Company appropriate documentation described 

above to allow Company to assess the qualifications of the Agency Professional. 

Company agrees to review the documentation and contact the Agency 

Professional and/or the Agency to complete the interview process. 

(b) Following the completion of 26 worked weeks of an assignment, Company may 

hire Agency Professional on a regular employment basis at no additional charge.  

Any Employees hired by Company before completion of 13 worked weeks will 

pay a placement fee of $15,00 for registered nurses and $3000 for LPN’s or 

CNA’s.  Any Employees hired after 13 weeks and before 26 weeks will pay a 

placement fee of $7500 for registered nurses and $1500 for LPN’s or CNA’s. 



(c) Company has the right to refuse the assignment of any prospective worker it 
deems as unsatisfactory without any liability to Agency. 

(d) Company and Agency shall each be required to maintain compliance with 

regulatory organizations and such documentation or information requested 

by the other party shall be reasonably provided to the other party. 

 
 
V. BILLING AND INVOICING 

 
(a) Company shall make payment for services rendered by Agency 

Professionals and billed by Agency within 30 days of receipt of invoice. 

(b) Company will guarantee a minimum of 36 hours per week or 40 hours per 

week for all Agency Professionals assigned to Company. Such guarantee 

does not apply to any Agency Professionals terminated for cause.  Mileage for 

all home to home visits will be billed at the current GSA rate. 

(c) The Agency shall provide to Company an “All-Inclusive Bill Rate” which 

such hourly rate shall include all of Agency’s charges such as housing, 

per diem, etc. 

(d) Rates for overtime, holiday, etc. if any, shall be agreed upon in the rate 

sheet provided to Company. 

(e) Agency will provide a 30 (thirty) day notification to change rates to 

Company. No rate change will apply to confirmed staff placed already at 

Company, for the period of the confirmed assignment. 

 
VI. TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
(a) This Agreement will be in effect from the date first above written, and shall 

continue until the agreement is terminated by either Agency or Company. 

 
VII. HIPPA COMPLIANCE 

 
(a) Agency shall perform all Contract duties, activities and tasks in compliance 

with HIPAA and regulations enacted pursuant to its provisions, successor law 

and/or regulation. Pursuant to 45 CFR 164.502(e), Agency shall implement 

policies and procedures to safeguard and maintain PHI in accordance with 

the requirements of state and federal law. Agency shall only use or disclose 

PHI as required to perform the services specified in this Contract or as 

required by law, and shall not use or disclose such PHI in any manner 

inconsistent with the use and disclosure restrictions placed on the Covered 

Entity by HIPAA, or the resulting policies and procedures of the Covered 

Entity. Agency shall protect PHI from, and shall establish appropriate 

safeguards to prevent, the unauthorized disclosure of PHI in accordance with 

the terms and conditions of this Amendment and state and federal law, 



including any regulations governing the security of PHI and the transmission, 

storage or maintenance of electronic data that contains PHI for as long as the 

PHI is within its possession and control, even after the termination or 

expiration of this Contract. Agency gives Consent to Audit in compliance with 

the terms of this Agreement. Reasonable Access shall be provided by 

Agency in accordance with PHI Access requirements of this Agreement with 

Company. 

 
VIII. INDEMNIFICATION 

 
(a) Agency agrees to indemnify and hold Company harmless from any and all 

liability Company may incur by reason of bodily injury or death or property 

damage (collectively “Damages”) to the extent caused by the negligent acts 

or omission of Agency Professionals in the performance of their assignment 

for Company except to the extent Damages are caused by Company’s 

negligence. Company agrees to indemnify and hold Agency harmless from 

any and all liability Agency may incur by reason of bodily injury or death or 

property damage (collectively “Damages”) to the extent caused by the 

negligent acts or omissions of Company employees in the performance of 

their duties, except to the extent Damages are caused by Agency’s 

negligence. 

 
IX. MISCELLANEOUS TERMS 

 
(a) This agreement will be governed by and in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Nebraska. 

(b) Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of 

the other party. 

(c) In the event that a provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or 

unenforceable, the balance of this agreement will remain in full force and 

elect. 

(d) The headings of sections in this Agreement are for reference only and will not 

affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 

(e) This Agreement constitutes the entire contract between Company and 

Agency regarding the services covered under this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed 

by their authorized officers as evidenced by their signatures below. 

 
 
SKYLINE MED STAFF, LLC COMPANY 

By:   By:     

Conor Kingsbury Name: Molly Rhea 

 Account Manager Title:  Director 



  

 

 
Nursing Rate Sheet 

 
 
*Rates can be negotiated in times of dire need* 
 
Nursing Specialties       (All Inclusive Rates) 
 
Home Health RN        $120.00 
 
Hospice RN          $120.00 
 
 
      
Charge Rate: $3.00 per hour 
Overtime rate is 1.5 times the base rate 
Call Rate is $10.00 per hour for every hour on call 
Callback Rate is 1.50 times the base rate with a 2-hour minimum. 
Holiday Rate is 1.5 times the base rate for the following Holidays;  
January 1st, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving, and December 25th 
 *Mileage Rate set at the standard IRS Rate (currently .585 cents per mile) * 
 
 
 
_________________________________   __________________ 
Facility Representative      Date 
 



Last Revised 6/10/2022 Page 1 of 7 Standard Terms and Conditions  

 
RATE AGREEMENT FOR: Morrow County Health District 
 

This rate agreement (Agreement) is made and entered into as of the Effective Date 7/19/22 by, and between Morrow 
County Health District (Client) with its principal office located at 564 E Pioneer Drive Heppner, OR 97836 and Jogan 
Health Inc., (Contractor) a Delaware corporation, whose principal address is 84 Inverness Circle East, Englewood, CO 
80112.  

 
DEFINITIONS 

A. Healthcare Professional is an employee of Contractor on assignment at Client For whom a 
Confirmation of terms of an assignment of no less than 13 weeks in duration has been made by the 
Client. 
 

B. Per Diem is defined as a payment made for a day’s work, not paid weekly or monthly, but daily. 
 

C. Confirmation is the Client’s written acceptance of a particular Healthcare Professional to fill a specific 
Client need. 

 

1. RATES 

See Exhibit A “Rate Schedule” 

A. Rates are subject to change with a 14-day written notice or as deemed necessary. 

B. Transportation is billed separately based upon specific needs (i.e., rideshare, taxi, rental 

cars, vans, shuttles, buses, etc.) 

C. All other clinical and non-clinical classes not included can be negotiated upon need. 
 

2. OVERTIME 
 

Work week begins Sunday at 7:00 AM. Overtime rates will apply as indicated by local labor statute; 
however, all overtime must be pre-approved by the Contractor.  
 

Hours in Excess of: Per: Overtime Multiplier: 

40.00 Week 1.50 

 
3. CANCELLATIONS 

 
A. Per Diem  

Minimum billing rate once Healthcare Professional has started to work is four (4) hours. 
Client may cancel twenty-four (24) hours prior to the start of the shift. If Client cancels with 
less than a twenty-four (24) hour notice, Contractor will bill for eight (8) hours at the regular 
hourly rate. 

 
B. Travel 

1. Client may cancel an assignment prior to starting with a two (2) week prior written 
notice. If Client gives less than a two (2) week prior notice, the Contractor will bill Client 
for one (1) week at the appropriate bill rate. 

2. In the event Client finds it necessary to terminate a Healthcare Professional’s 
assignment during the assignment, for no fault of Contractor or Healthcare Professional, 
the Client shall reimburse Contractor for the days missed with documentation thereof at 
the appropriate bill rate, and for all contractual obligations for transportation and housing 
incurred as a result of Contractor placement of the Healthcare professional with Client. 

 
3. Client acknowledges that reimbursement or other expense allowance arrangement 

exists between the parties with respect to housing and meals paid to Healthcare 
Professionals who are on travel assignments with documents to support expense.  
Contractor will provide a statement to the Client on an annual basis of the 
reimbursement amount which may be subject to tax deduction limitations. 

 
 



Last Revised 6/10/2022 Page 2 of 7 Standard Terms and Conditions  

 
 

4. Healthcare Professional will be working a set number of hours per assignment upon agreement by 
Contractor, and Client. Please refer to the chart located on Attachment A, “Rate Schedule” For each 
Healthcare Professional who has not been provided with an Assignment but has nonetheless 
traveled for deployment as required under this Agreement, Contractor shall have the right to invoice 
the Client for up to seven (7) days of “Stand-Down Pay.” Stand-Down Pay shall be calculated by 
multiplying the applicable Healthcare Professional’s Hourly Rate by eight (8) hours by the actual 
number of days the applicable Healthcare Professional had to Stand-Down prior to being deployed 
for Assignment. In the event a Healthcare Professional is not deployed for an Assignment at the 
end of seven (7) days, Contractor and Client shall confer to determine whether such Healthcare 
Professional should return home or remain on-site for additional Stand-Down Pay. 

  
4. OTHER 

 

A. Orientation 
Contractor will bill Client the hourly rate. 

 
B. Any/All Healthcare Professional bonuses provided by Client are subject to 

deductions for payroll burden and miscellaneous expenses. 
 

C. Unless otherwise agreed upon in writing, Contractor’s Standard Terms and Conditions of 
Service and Standard Hiring Practices, shall apply and are published at joganhealth.com. All of 
these current Terms and Conditions have already been incorporated into this agreement. 

 

D. This Agreement may be modified or amended by written agreement and supersedes all 
prior Agreements of the parties within 2 weeks. 

 
E. In the event services are provided to Client by Contractor, and this agreement is not signed, 

Client’s acceptance of such services will be deemed as acceptance of the terms of this 
agreement. 

 

Contractor, and CLIENT agree that rates will be reviewed annually/quarterly or as deemed necessary and will 

be subject to incremental adjustments at a minimum rate in accordance with the current Consumer Price 

Index. Such adjustments shall apply when applicable as an offset to increasing overhead costs attributable to 

expenses such as but not limited to payroll taxes, workmen’s compensation, unemployment expenses, health 

benefits, meals/incidentals, and lodging, etc. Rate adjustments will be provided with a written notice and 

agreed upon by mutual written agreement. 

 

Contractor      “Client” 
A Delaware Corporation 
 
Signature:      Signature: 
Name __________________________________ Name  ________________________________ 
 
Title: __________________________________ Title     ________________________________ 

Please Print      Please Print 
  
Date:     ___________________________________ Date:   __________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

https://joganhealth.com/


Last Revised 6/10/2022 Page 3 of 7 Standard Terms and Conditions  

 

 

 

 
This document describes the standard terms and conditions for the provision of services by Contractor to its clients. In the 
event that any of these terms and conditions conflict with other arrangements agreed upon in writing or stated in a 
Contractor agreement or rate agreement, such other terms and conditions shall apply. Changes to these standard terms and 
conditions of service may occur from time to time and will be published at the joganhealth.com public website. 

 
DEFINITIONS 

 

A. Healthcare professional is an employee of Contractor on assignment at Client. for whom a Confirmation of 
terms of an assignment of not less than 13 weeks in duration has been made by the Client. 
 

B. Confirmation is the Client’s written acceptance of a particular Healthcare Professional to fill a specific Client need. 
 

Responsibilities of Contractor 
 

1. Provide services in conformance with all Joint Commission standards applicable to Health Care Staffing Services. 
 

2. Provide service coordinator staff on a 24 hour per day, 365 day per year basis to receive and process service requests 
and changes. 

 
3. Match client service requests with Healthcare Professional who are properly screened and qualified in accordance 

with our standard hiring practices. 
 

4. Provide clients, upon request, with documentation of the skills and qualifications of assigned personnel, either via e-
mail or facsimile. 

 
5. Instruct all Healthcare Professional to always carry on their person an original license, evidence of current CPR and 

any applicable specialty certifications, for immediate client inspection. 
 

6. Assume sole responsibility as the employer of record for the payment of wages to Healthcare Professional and for 
the withholding of applicable federal, state, and local income taxes, the making of required Social Security tax 
contributions, and the meeting of all other statutory employer responsibilities (including, but not limited to, 
unemployment and worker’s compensation insurance, payroll excise taxes, etc.). 

 
7. Comply with federal, state and local labor and employment laws applicable to Assigned Employees, including the 

Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986; the Internal Revenue Code (“Code”); the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act (“ERISA”); the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”); the Family Medical Leave 
Act; Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; the Americans with Disabilities Act; the Fair Labor Standards Act; the 
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (“COBRA”); the Uniformed Services Employment and 
Reemployment Rights Act of 1994; as set forth in subparagraph h. below, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care 
Act (ACA); and the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970. 

 
8. Comply with all provisions of the ACA applicable to Assigned Employees, including the employer shared 

responsibility provisions relating to the offer of “minimum essential coverage” to “full-time” employees (as those 
terms are defined in Code §4980H and related regulations) and the applicable employer information reporting 
provisions under Code §6055 and §6056 and related regulations. 

 
9. Maintain a system documenting, tracking, and reporting unexpected incidents, including errors, unanticipated deaths 

and other events, injuries, and safety hazards relating to the care and services provided. (It is the Clients’ 
responsibility to promptly notify Contractor immediately, no less than 24 hours of when an incident occurs. Upon 
notification, Contractor will then implement incident tracking/resolution processes and communicate with the client as 
needed.) The client may be required to provide written documentation to Contractor to facilitate the investigation and 
potential corrective actions of incidents. Depending on the severity of the incident; Contractor will also have our Risk 
Oversight Committee review and make recommendations. 

 
10. Maintain general liability insurance and professional liability insurance with limits equal to or greater than $1,000,000 

per occurrence and $3,000,000 aggregate. Maintain workers compensation in the amounts mandated by law in the 
state or states in which services are being performed. Contractor will provide certificates of insurance on request. 

 
11. May use subcontractors in the usual course of providing staffing services. 

 
12. Not discriminate in employment with respect to race, religion, sex, creed, disability, or national origin in compliance 

with all applicable laws including Title VII of the Civil Rights Acts of 1964, or any of its amendments, and the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 
13. Comply with Section 1861(v) of the Social Security Act, and, therefore, for a period of four years, make available 

upon written request such books, documents and records as are necessary to certify the nature and extent of the  
cost of providing services. 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 
 

https://joganhealth.com/
https://joganhealth.com/


Last Revised 6/10/2022 Page 4 of 7 Standard Terms and Conditions  

 
 
 

 
 
Responsibilities of Client:

        

 
1. Make final determination of the suitability of Healthcare Professional’s documented competencies and experience as 

presented by Contractor for the designated assignment. 

 
2. Provide orientation which, at minimum, includes the review of policies and procedures regarding medication 

administration, documentation procedures, patient rights, Infection Prevention, and Fire and Safety, OSHA, and 
EMR/Charting (if applicable). 

 
3. Manage Contractor’s Healthcare Professional consistent with their own policies and procedures and address any incident 

consistent with those policies and procedures. Promptly notify (no less than 24 hours) Contractor by telephone and by written 
documentation of any unexpected incidents, errors, sentinel events and any occupational safety hazards or events that 
involve Healthcare Professional.  

 
4. Recognize Contractor’s policy regarding the floating of staff whereby Healthcare Professionals are instructed not to accept a 

floating assignment if they do not have the skills required to perform a competent level of care. 
 

5. Assist Contractor with the periodic evaluation (no less than annually) of Healthcare Professional’s job performance. 
Healthcare Professionals will be evaluated after each assignment. 

 
6. If applicable, when advanced practice services are requested (NPs and/or PAs), it is the responsibility of the CLIENT to have 

an executed copy of the Collaborative Agreement between the advanced practice personnel and the collaborating physician. 
 

7. Promptly notify (no less than 24 hours) Contractor by written documentation of any unsatisfactory job performance or action 
taken to terminate the services of a Healthcare Professional due to incompetence, negligence, or misconduct. In such event 
the client shall only be obligated to compensate Contractor for actual time worked by the Healthcare Professional. 

 
8. If unable to resolve a problem or complaint at the branch or department level, please refer to the Contractor’s Client 

Grievance Policy located at joganhealth.com for instructions on how to submit a grievance to Contractor or to report concerns 
to The Joint Commission. Client may submit a grievance in writing to the corporate office by mail or by email to 
dan.dietrich@joganhealth.com or by calling our corporate office Human Resources/Quality Assurance Director at 303-374-
4988 

 
9. Provide at least two hours’ notice of any cancellation of assignment or accept responsibility for payment of two hours of 

service at the applicable rate for Per Diem shifts. Agreed upon services of a Healthcare Professional should not be cancelled 
unless rescheduled within the same week. Minimum billing once Healthcare Professional has started to work a four (4) hour 
or greater assignment is four (4) hours.  

 
10. Timely and accurately approval of Healthcare Professional timecards upon request. Healthcare Professional timecards will be 

made available by Contractor upon request. 
. 

 
a. Remit payment for services directly to Contractor upon receipt of invoice, no later than 7 calendar days after thirty 

(30) days. Invoicing dates are Sunday through Saturday unless otherwise agreed upon by Client and Contractor If 
payment is received after such time, late payment charges shall be paid on the unpaid balance due on the contract 
to Contractor at the rate of 1.5% per month. In the event the client questions any amounts invoiced, an explanation 
of any items in question must be received by Contractor’s Accounts Receivable department within 5 days. This 
notification must be made by one of the following means:

 

By email to:       By U.S. Mail to: 
ap@joganhealth.com      Jogan Health, Inc.  

a Delaware Corporation 
Attn: Accounts Receivable 84 Inverness Circle East 
Englewood, CO 80112 

 

b. Pay interest equal to the annual maximum allowable by state law, plus cost and disbursements, including 
reasonable attorney and/or collection fees, incurred in the collection of the client’s account in the event client fails 
to remit payment within 7 days from the invoice date. 

 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 
 

https://joganhealth.com/
mailto:dan.dietrich@joganhealth.com
mailto:ap@joganhealth.com


 
Standard Terms and Conditions 

 

             

 
Responsibilities of Client Cont’d: 

11. Flipping: During the term of this Agreement, if, and to the extent that, any Healthcare Professional whose profile is submitted by Contractor to 
Client and is working at Client’s facility for Contractor, Client agrees that it will not cause its affiliates to interfere with the business of 
Contractor by inducing that candidate to become employed by any other party at Client’s facility (e.g., no "flipping"). 
 

12. Client will not hire Healthcare Professional from Contractor 12 months from their last worked shift at the Client facility. If the 12- month period 
is not honored, Contractor will invoice for a conversion fee based on the Temp-to-Perm conversion fee schedule. 

 
13. Client to confirm lodging accommodations for the Healthcare Professional, as agreed upon in Exhibit A 

 
These terms shall apply unless this right is specifically protected in accordance with state and/or local law. (In 
accordance with the MN Statute 144A.72 Contractor will not, in any MN contract, with any MN employee or MN health care 
facility, require the payment of liquidated damages, employment fees, or other compensation should the employee be hired 
as a permanent employee of a health care facility. The following Direct Hire/Temp to Perm terms will apply for all allied 
personnel and/or personnel not providing “direct patient care,” excluding clinical RNs, LPNs, and CNAs in the State of 
Minnesota) 

The Following Policy and Fee Schedule Shall Apply to Direct Hire Placements: 
The direct hire fee shall be equal to the following percent of the candidate’s first year’s annualized salary for any candidate 
presented to Client by Contractor who accepts a position with any clinic, group, healthcare facility or organization owned, 
operated, or affiliated with Client whether or not in Client’s actual local community. Salary amount will be listed on the employment 
letter for the candidate. In the event Contractor submits a candidate that has been in Client’s database but has not been 
contacted by Client within 45 days, the candidate is considered eligible to be presented through Contractor 

 
Position Level Job Specification Direct Hire Fees 

Staff Position Registered Nurse, Licensed Practical Nurse, Certified Nursing Assistant, 
Case Manager, Charge RN, Health Informatics 

15% 

Mid-Level Nurse Practitioner, Physician Assistant, Department Manager/Director 20% 

Executive Level Director of Nursing, VP Operations and C-Level Healthcare Personnel 25% 

Physicians  $20,000 

 
A. Client agrees to make payment to Contractor in the following manner: 

i. Client will be invoiced upon confirmation of placement for each candidate. 
ii. Full payment of the direct hire fee will be due to Contractor upon receipt of the invoice date. 

 
B. Direct Hire Guarantee: 

The Direct Hire Guarantee will apply if payment is received within ten (10) days of the date on the invoice. In the 
unlikely event that the client is unsatisfied with a candidate provided by Contractor prior to completion of ninety (90) 
days of the start date the client may choose to end the candidate’s employment. Contractor will work with Client to 
replace the candidate, or Client will be issued a credit on a replacement as follows: 

 
0 – 30 days 75% credit 

31 – 60 days 50% credit 
61 – 90 days 25% credit 

  

i. No replacement will be offered in the event of layoff, a substantial change in the original job description, or 
elimination of the position. 

ii. Credits may be used immediately or within twelve (12) months beginning at the termination date. A credit may 
be used for the original candidate search; any deviation from this will need to be approved in advance by 
Contractor 

iii. Client will not directly hire a candidate from Contractor, or another staffing agency for 12 months from when 
Contractor initially presented the candidate for hire. If the 12-month period is not honored, the full Direct Hire 
Fee’s associated above shall apply. 

iv. If applicable, and if/when advanced practice services are requested (NPs and/or PAs), it is the responsibility of 
the CLIENT to have an executed copy of the Collaborative Agreement between the advanced practice personnel 
and the collaborating physician. 
 

C. Temp-to-Perm Option: 
A Temp-to-Perm position will include a temporary hourly bill rate and a reduced permanent placement (conversion) 
fee upon the successful completion of the temporary portion of the assignment based on the fee schedule as shown 
below. Full payment of the placement fee and invoices for services prior to conversion are due within 30 days of the 
Healthcare Professional’s start date as an ‘employee’ of the client. These terms shall apply unless this right is 
specifically protected in accordance with state and/or local law. 
 

Hours Worked at Facility Through Contractor  Permanent Placement Fee: 

0-199 = 100% of Direct Hire Fee 

200-399 = 75% of Direct Hire Fee 

400-599 = 50% of Direct Hire Fee 

600-799 = 25% of Direct Hire Fee 

799+ = No Fee 

 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 
 



 
Standard Terms and Conditions 

 

Last Revised 6/102022 Page 6 of 7 

 

  

 

 

Joint Commission 
The Joint Commission standards under which Contractor is certified relate to quality and safety of care issues as impacted by 
Contractor’s healthcare professionals. Anyone believing that he or she has pertinent and valid concerns about such matters should report 
these to the management of Contractor either at the branch office or the corporate office (please see 
our web site at joganhealth.com for contact information). If the concerns cannot be resolved through Contractor, the individual is 
encouraged to contact The Joint Commission. 
 
Phone: 800-994-6610 

E-Mail: patientsafetyreport@jointcommission.org 

Fax: 630-792-5636 

Mail: Office of Quality and Patient Safety 
The Joint Commission 
One Renaissance Boulevard 
Oakbrook Terrace, IL 60181 

Online: www.jointcommission.org 

 
 

Exhibit A 

Rate Schedule 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Position Title 
Position 

Hourly Rate 

Overtime 
Hourly Rate Minimum 

Hours 

Client Provided 
Lodging 
(Yes/No) 

Registered Nurse 
Home Health 

$110.00 Per 
Hour 

$165.00 Per 
Hour 40 

Yes 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 
 

https://joganhealth.com/
https://joganhealth.com/
mailto:patientsafetyreport@jointcommission.org
http://www.jointcommission.org/GeneralPublic/Complaint/


 
Standard Terms and Conditions 

 

 

Last Revised 6/102022 Page 7 of 7 

 

 

  

1. THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTATION WAS COLLECTED AND RETAINED IN THE PERSONNEL 
FILE FOR ALL PERSONNEL: 

 
a. Pre-Employment Screening: All applicants are subjected to a 10-panel drug screen and otherwise evaluated 

in accordance with applicable regulatory requirements (within 6 Weeks or by client). Verification of COVID 
Vaccination Status is completed prior to deployment. 

b. Criminal Background Investigation: Employees are checked in a manner compliant with the requirements of 
Client and always in accordance with government regulations. 

c. Work History: Documentation of work history associated with profession/class or as required by client. 
(Accepted if documented on the application) 

d. License Verification: Primary Source On-Line Verification of the employee’s license/certification verified with 
the state, 

e. unless the state does not offer verification. 
 

f. Certifications: C.P.R. card and/or other certifications (ACLS, PALS, etc.) as required by policy and client 
requirements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STANDARD HIRING PRACTICES 
 



 

  
Pioneer Memorial 
Hospital & Nursing 

Facility 

Pioneer Memorial 
Home Health & 

Hospice 

Pioneer Memorial 
Clinic 

Irrigon Medical 
Clinic 

Ione Community 
Clinic 

Morrow County 
Ambulance 

P – (541) 676-9133 P – (541) 676-2946 P – (541) 676-5504  P – (541) 922-5880 P – (541) 422-7128 P – (541) 676-9133 
F – (541) 676-2901 F – (541) 676-9017 F – (541) 676-9025  F – (541) 922-5881 F – (541) 422-7145 F – (541) 676-2901 
TDD – (541) 676-2908      

MCHD is An Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 

 

 
 
 
 
The following medical staff appointments and privileges were approved by the medical staff committee on 
7/20/22. 
 

 Appointments: 
o Michael Neuman, MD – Radiology Specialists of the Northwest 
o Piper Rooke, MD – Radiology Specialists of the Northwest 
o Justin Cameron, PA – Morrow County Health District, Irrigon Medical Clinic 

 

 Privileges: 
o Regina Lazinka, SLP – Pioneer Memorial Physical Therapy – Privileges granted to perform 

nasopharyngoscopy services (swallow studies) 
 
 
 

 
 



ro BOX9 
Heppner OR 97836 

Tel: 541-6 76-9133 
Toll free: 1-800-73 7-41 r 3 

www.morrowcountyhealthdlstrlct.org 

APPOINTMENT TO THE MEDICAL STAFF 

NAME IN FULL: Justin Cameron, PA-C

220 N Main Street, Irrigon OR 97844 
OFFICE ADDRESS: _____________ _

 
RESIDENCE ADDRESS: ____________ _ 

PRIVILEGES DESIRED: Family Practice - Clinics

DATE: 07/07/2022 

TELEPHONE: 541-922-5880

TELEPHONE: 

IN APPLYING FOR APPOINTMENT TO THE MEDICAL STAFF OF MORROW COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT, I AGREE 

TO ABIDE BY IT'S BYLAWS AND BY SUCH RULES AND REGULATIONS AS IT MAY FROM TIME TO TIME ENACT. 

MOREVER, I SPECIFICALLY PLEDGE THAT I WILL NOT RECEIVE FROM, OR PAY TO, ANOTHER PHYSICIAN EITHER 

DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLYANY PART OF A FEE RECEIVED FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. 

APPLICAg � 
7/13/2022 
DATE 

CHIEF OF STAFF SIGNATURE DATE 

BOARD CHAIR SIGNATURE DATE 

APPOINTMENT RECOMMENDED: 0 

APPOINTMENT NOT RECOMMENDED: 0 

APPOINTMENT DEFERRED: 0 

Pioneer Memorial 
Hospital & Nursing 

Facllity 
P- (541) 676-9133
F- (541) 676•2901
TOD -(541) 676-2908

Pioneer Memorial 
Home Health & 

Hospice 
P-(541) 676-2946 
F-(541) 676--9017 

Pioneer Memorial 
Cllnlc 

P- (541) 676-5504
F - (541) 676-9025

Irrigon MedlC<!I 
Clinic 

P- (541) 922-5880
F- (541) 922-5881

lone Community 
Clinic 

P- (541) 422-7128
F- (541) 422-7145

MCHD is An Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 

Morrow County 
Ambulance 

P - (541) 676-9133 

F - (541) 676-2901 

� Cam Scanner 



ro BOX 9 
Heppner OR 97836 
Tel: 541-676-9133 

Toll Free: 1-8JO- 737.11 I 13 
www.1r.orrowcountyhec"1.ltl1disrrict.or�� 

APPOINTMENT TO THE MEDICAL STAFF 

NAME IN FULL: Regina Lee Lazinka 

695 Alfalfa ST, Heppner OR 97836 
OFFICE ADDRESS: ________________ _ 

DATE: 7/19/2022 

541-676-1123
TELEPrl0NE: ______ _

 
TELEPHONE: _ _RESIDENCE ADDRESS: _ _ 

IN APPLYING FOi\ APPOINTMENT TO THE MEDICAL STAFF OF MORROW COUNTY HEAi.TH DISTRICT, I AGHEE 
fO ABIDE BY IT'S BYLAWS AND OY SUCH RULES AND REGULATIONS AS IT MAY FRCM TIME TO TIME ENACT. 
M0REVEl\ 1 I SPECIFICALLY PLEDGE THAT I WILL NOT RECEIVE FROM, OR PAY TO, ANOTHER PHYSICIAN EITHER 
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ANY PART OF A FEE RECEIVED FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. 

a.&cLL_f3�A1i&_ N. Q ___ "l- 2_1-_-2_02_2 ________ 
CHIEF or- STAFF SIGNATUH('- - DATE 

-·- ----------------------------------------

B0MW CHAIR SIGNATURE 

APPOINTMENT RECOMMENDED: :J 

APPOINTMENT NOT RECOMMENDED: 0 

APPOINTMENT DEFERRED: 0 

DATE 

.... -Pio��er Memorl�I Plone�r Mmnurial Pioneer Me111orlal lrrli:ou Medical lone Comrr.unity 
Ho�pllal & Nursing Hnnw H�;dlh & Clinic Clinic Cli11lc 

F�cility Hospice 
P-(51\llf,7£,,9133 P-(�4l)G76-2946 fl-(�1H)67C,-5504 P··(541)�l22-5880 P-(�oH)<122,712� 
I - (Sal) 67G-290.1 F - (51HI u7G-!JOP F - (541) G"/6-9025 F-(�>41) 97.2-588] F- (Sill) 1.22-7.ti\5 
TD0 ·• (54J} G76-2!J08 

MCHD ,s An Equal Oflp0rtumty Provider ;mcl Employer 

Morrow County 
/\rt1bul;1ncc 

P - (Sill, G 76-� l33 

"-1�,1 t) cm;-?.9Gl 





--� 

MORROW COUNTY HEALTI-IDISTRICT I>IONEER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL PO nox 9 * 564 E. PIONEER DR.lVE HEI'PNER, OREGON 97836 
L\J!PJll.Nf.MEN.T .. J;Q THE MEDICAL� 

NAME m FULL:__f ,, f8'R.. \(e )\ .ea£, �1? ;c;
oFFrc11:ADoRE1s: ¾.J;."t):�1> c{fd. J.fu\/J--f- sf, Jtkfe. l/2 t, PDrl//'iJ-.,4, DJcf.
TELEJ.>HONE: �5D's ';L}3J-z,tj OD 7 ' ) '-'19-i I 3 
RESIDENCE ADDRESS:      TELEPHONE:_  _5'  f )PIUVI,LEGES I_ DESlRED: __ -+73-->«-·&_,_,!,e..u;J:-c."Pi...l...!� d'-"-', i�·12_,_,,J12:..;-,,�...,,.1/---------

IN APPLYING FOR APPOINTMENT TO THE MEDICAL STAFF OJ.l' MORROW COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT I AGREE 1'0 ABIDE BY IT'S DYLA WS AND BY SUCH RULES AND REGULATIONS AS I'l' MAY l1'ROM TIME TO TIME ENACT. MOREVER, I SPECIFICALLY :PLEOGE THAT I WILL NOT RECEIVE FROM, OR P .AY TO, ANOTHER PHYSLCIAN El'fllER DIRECTLY Oll INDIRECTLY ANY PART OF A "FEE. �CEIV�D· FJ)f PROll'ESSIONAf., SERVICES,
I ./ 'Ax;4. /:J-. I ) k ),h,±1APJ.>LJ.C . . DATE / I I 

Appointment t·ecmmnended: ___ _ Appointment not recommended: ___ _ Appojntment defoned: ______ _ 
Date: 7� 2/-Z022 

Date: -----

Date: ____ _ 

�&J M.7) Edward Berretta, MD Chief of Staff 
Emily Roberts, CEO 
Monow County l-Ie.1ltll Distl'ict 

Marie Shimer, Board Member 



 

Pioneer Memorial 
Hospital & Nursing 

Facility 

Pioneer Memorial 
Home Health & 

Hospice 

Pioneer Memorial 
Clinic 

Irrigon Medical 
Clinic 

Ione Community 
Clinic 

Morrow County 
Ambulance 

P – (541) 676-9133 P – (541) 676-2946 P – (541) 676-5504  P – (541) 922-5880 P – (541) 422-7128 P – (541) 676-9133 
F – (541) 676-2901 F – (541) 676-9017 F – (541) 676-9025  F – (541) 922-5881 F – (541) 422-7145 F – (541) 676-2901 
TDD – (541) 676-2908      

MCHD is An Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 

 

 
 
 

7/12/2022 
 

With the purchase of new furniture for Pioneer Memorial Hospital, the District 
would like to surplus the following furniture items: 
 

 6 Bedside Tables  

 8 Nightstands  

 7 Armoires 
 










	Board Packet - July 2022 - V3
	Board Agenda - July 2022 - V3
	Board Packet - July 2022 - V2
	Board Packet - July 2022
	Board Meeting Minutes - July 2022 - Special Session - DRAFT
	Board Meeting Minutes June 2022 - DRAFT
	Dashboard - July 2022
	EMS Stats
	PMC - June 2022
	IMC - June 2022
	ICC - June 2022
	Promise of Excellence
	Union Agreement 2022-2024 Contract
	Morrow County Broadband Action Team Request to Health District
	Skyline Med Staff Contract - Pioneer Memorial
	Surplus

	Medical Staff Appointments
	Med Staff_Redacted

	Rate Agreement -  Jogan Health Inc. 6.14.22docx - Morrow County Health ver  2

	2022-07-22 13-58

